
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 17 September 2013 
6.00 pm 

Pittville Room - Municipal Offices 
 

Membership 
Councillors: Steve Jordan, John Rawson, Rowena Hay, Peter Jeffries, 

Andrew McKinlay, Jon Walklett and Roger Whyborn 
 

Agenda  
    
  SECTION 1 : PROCEDURAL MATTERS  
    
1.   APOLOGIES  
    
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
    
3.   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

Minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2013 
(Pages 
1 - 8) 

    
4.   PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  
    
  SECTION 2 :THE COUNCIL   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the Council 

on this occasion 
 

    
  SECTION 3 : OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on this occasion 
 

 

    
  SECTION 4 : OTHER COMMITTEES   
  There are no matters referred to the Cabinet by other 

Committees on this occasion 
 

 

    
  SECTION 5 : REPORTS FROM CABINET MEMBERS 

AND/OR OFFICERS 
 

    
5.   LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME (LCTS) 

Report of the Cabinet Member Finance 
(Pages 
9 - 16) 

  
 

  



    

 
2 
 

6.   
 
 

REBRANDING CHELTENHAM ART GALLERY AND 
MUSEUM 
Report of the Cabinet Member Sport and Culture 

(Pages 
17 - 22) 

    
7.   REQUEST FOR CONSENT FOR THE COUNCIL TO 

ENTER INTO A DEED DEDICATING WEAVERS FIELD 
AND THE BURROWS PLAYING FIELD AS QUEEN 
ELIZABETH II FIELDS WITH THE ORGANISATION 
FIELDS IN TRUST 
Report of the Cabinet Member Sustainability 

(Pages 
23 - 32) 

    
8.   TRIENNIAL REVIEW OF THE SEXUAL 

ENTERTAINMENT VENUE POLICY 
Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 

(Pages 
33 - 56) 

    
9.   RESPONSE TO RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE 

SCRUTINY TASK GROUP ON THE SEX TRADE IN 
CHELTENHAM 
Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 

(Pages 
57 - 64) 

    
  SECTION 6 : BRIEFING SESSION   
  • Leader and Cabinet Members  
    

10.   BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS  
    
  SECTION 7 : DECISIONS OF CABINET MEMBERS AND 

OFFICERS  
 

  Member decisions taken since the last Cabinet meeting  
    
  SECTION 8 : ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THAT THE LEADER 

DETERMINES TO BE URGENT AND REQUIRES A 
DECISION 

 

    
  SECTION 9 : LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - 

EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 

    
11.   LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXEMPT BUSINESS 

The Cabinet is recommended to approve the following 
resolution:- 
 

“That in accordance with Section 100A(4) Local 
Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the 
meeting for the remaining agenda items as it is likely that, 
in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the 
nature of the proceedings, if members of the public are 
present there will be disclosed to them exempt information 
as defined in paragraphs 3 and 5, Part (1) Schedule (12A) 
Local Government Act 1972, namely: 
 
Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular  
person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Paragraph 5; Information in respect of which a claim to 
legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal 

 



    

 
3 
 

proceedings 
    
12.   EXEMPT MINUTES 

Exempt minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2013 
(Pages 
65 - 66) 

    
13.   ST PAUL'S PHASE TWO 

Report of the Cabinet Member Housing and Safety 
(Appendix 2 to follow) 

(Pages 
67 - 78) 

    
  Section 10: BRIEFING NOTES   
  Joint Waste Committee Business Plan  
    

 
Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on. Tuesday, 17 September 2013 
 

Cabinet 
 

Tuesday, 16th July, 2013 
6.00  - 7.00 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors: Steve Jordan (Leader of the Council), John Rawson (Cabinet 
Member Finance), Rowena Hay (Cabinet Member Sport and 
Culture), Peter Jeffries (Cabinet Member Housing and Safety), 
Andrew McKinlay (Cabinet Member Built Environment), 
Jon Walklett (Cabinet Member Corporate Services) and 
Roger Whyborn (Cabinet Member Sustainability) 
 

 
Minutes 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
None 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 June were approved and signed as a 
correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
There were none. 
 

5. SOCIAL LETTINGS SERVICE 
The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety introduced the report which outlined 
the development of a Social Lettings Service for landlords and tenants in the 
private rented sector. He explained that the main impetus behind this was in 
response to the government’s welfare reform. He made reference to paragraph 
1.3 of the report which outlined the range of services the Housing Options 
Service would offer and in so doing should provide reassurance to private 
landlords. The Leader added that this represented an enhancement to the 
housing options service and was very welcome. 
 
RESOLVED that 

1. the implementation and continued development of a Social Lettings 
Scheme called ‘Spa Lettings’ by the Housing Options Service be 
approved. 

2. the Social Lettings Scheme be transferred to Cheltenham Borough 
Homes as part of the transfer of the Housing Options Service as 
approved by Cabinet on 18 June 2013. 

 
 

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 17 September 2013 
 

6. EVENTS CONSULTATION GROUP AND SAFETY ADVISORY GROUP 
The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety introduced the report and explained 
that Cabinet had considered a report from the Event Submissions Scrutiny Task 
Group at its meeting on 5 February 2013. At the time it noted the 
recommendations but agreed to come back to Cabinet to outline how they could 
be implemented since at that time it was very much work in progress. The 
Safety Advisory Group was in the process of being established and concern 
had been expressed about the volume of events which could potentially come 
through the process. The Cabinet Member stated that the process has 
subsequently proved to be manageable and members commended the efficient 
process now in force and the professional approach of officers conducting the 
work. 
 
RESOLVED  
 
that it be noted that : 
 

1. an Events Consultative Group (ECG) has been established and has 
been operating in accordance with the Terms of Reference set out 
in Appendix 2; 

2. a Safety Advisory Group (SAG) has been established; 
3. an information page has been created on the council's website; 
 

that : 
4. the draft Safety Advisory Group Terms of Reference set out in 

Appendix 5 be approved; 
5. the draft Events Consultative Group & Safety Advisory Group 

Communication Protocol set out in Appendix 4 be approved. 
 
 

7. GREEN DEAL DELIVERY 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability introduced the report and explained that the 
Green Deal allowed individuals and businesses to make energy efficiency 
improvements to their buildings at no upfront cost. Central to the Green Deal 
was a finance mechanism that would allow access to the finance needed for the 
improvements with repayment, in instalments, attached to the electricity bill. The 
Energy Companies Obligation underpinned the delivery of the Green Deal and 
was designed primarily to deal with hard to treat properties and to assist those 
in fuel poverty by issuing means tested grants as applicable. 
 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability explained that the report recommended 
continuing partnership arrangements with Severn Wye Energy Agency to assist 
with the Council’s Affordable Warmth Strategy and Home Energy Conservation 
Act (HECA) reporting requirements and to increase the take up of sustainable 
energy retrofit measures by the provision of a local support hub. He informed 
Members that a common approach was proposed among all six Gloucestershire 
districts. The costs to Cheltenham of the partnership arrangement would be 
£10k per annum for the financial years 2013-14 and 2014-15. A new Service 
Level Agreement would be entered into in 2015. 
 
 
RESOLVED that 
 

Page 2



 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 17 September 2013 
 

the authority enter into a service level agreement (Appendix 2) until 30 
March 2015 with Severn Wye Energy Agency for the provision of energy 
efficiency related services. 
 

8. IMPERIAL GARDENS - REINSTATEMENT OF HISTORIC RAILINGS 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability introduced the report on the restoration of 
the historic railings to Imperial Gardens which represented a significant and 
exciting project in the development of Cheltenham town centre. As Cabinet 
Member his role was to promote the town’s gardens in a way which gave 
maximum benefit to the largest number of people. He highlighted the public 
consultation he had undertaken to ensure that there was support in principle 
and that the project complemented the ongoing development of the area in a 
way which was ascetically pleasing in a 21st century setting in gardens which 
were functional for events such as the Science and Literature Festivals. He 
explained that the proposed railing design was generally true to the original, 
apart from a height reduction of 0.35m and this was agreed by Planning 
Committee in May 2013. There were no plans to fit gates but rather to leave 
open entrances for best aesthetic design. The Cabinet Member referred to the 
map which had been tabled and which had been submitted to Planning 
Committee and which was a more accurate appraisal of entrance sizes. 
The Cabinet Member said that whilst the £500 000 scheme had great merit, the 
Council could not support it financially. The Friends of Imperial Square, Heritage 
and Conservation (FISHAC) were therefore seeking to raise funds 
independently. The plan was to divide the project into three phases, with no 
possibility to start a later phase while an earlier phase remained incomplete. He 
thanked FISHAC for their forbearance in what had been a long process and 
said that the council looked forward to working with them in partnership. 
Finally, he highlighted that in the context of paragraph 2.9 of the report FISHAC 
would be responsible for funding ongoing maintenance of the railings. He 
reiterated that Cabinet was approving the scheme referenced 
13/00301/AMEND & 13/00302 LBC and that there was very clear public support 
to the proposal. 
 
The Leader of the Council highlighted that the funding aspect of the proposal 
would be submitted to Council on Monday 22 July for approval and explained 
that the council would ensure the funding stream was in place before 
committing to the works given the potential liability involved. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 
1. The reinstatement of the historic railings at Imperial Gardens be 
approved. 
 
2. the Head of Property and Asset Management be authorised to carry out 
the procurement to appoint the contractor to carry out the works to 
Imperial Gardens and a project manager to manage the construction 
project. 
 
3. The Authority enter into an agreement with The Friends of Imperial 
Square Heritage and Conservation for the restoration of the railings, to 
include provision for funding to be transferred to the Authority prior to 
commencement of each stage of the scheme.  
 

Page 3



 
 
 

 

 
- 4 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 17 September 2013 
 

Council be recommended to  
 
4. Allocate the budget for the project and the budget for the external 
funding within the Authority’s capital programme.  
 
 
 

9. CHELTENHAM TOWN HALL CAPITAL INVESTMENT SCHEME 
The Cabinet Member Sport and Culture introduced the report and explained 
that over the past 5 years the Town Hall had delivered £212 000 savings, 
income generation and efficiency savings. It was now considered that further 
significant savings could only be made with a programme of capital investment 
as the Town Hall was at maximum capacity. The report set out details of the 
feasibility study and the strategic vision for the Town Hall.  
 
The Cabinet Member explained that in the financial outturn report to be 
submitted to Council a carry forward bid of £10 000 was sought to be used to 
have the estimate capital figures scrutinised by an independent quantity survey. 
Furthermore, in order to provide in principle support towards capital investment 
at the Town Hall, it was proposed that Cabinet recommended to Council the 
allocation of an initial £200 k to develop the designs to a recognised design 
stage with consultation with English Heritage, Heritage Lottery Fund, local 
planners and wider community consultation. The Cabinet Member advised that 
capital projects seeking Heritage Lottery Funding needed to have reached this 
stage in order to submit a first round application. 
 
The Cabinet Member Finance welcomed this visionary but practical scheme. 
Drawing in external capital would offer the potential of delivering additional 
income which would help meet the financial challenges the Council was facing 
and it would create a Town Hall fit for the 21st century. 
 
RESOLVED that 
 

1. based on the outcome of the feasibility study the capital 
investment project on a phased approach for Cheltenham Town 
Hall be approved  

2. Cabinet recommend to Council the allocation of an initial £200k to 
invest into the Cheltenham Town Hall capital investment scheme in 
order to progress the scheme to RIBA Stage B and seek to submit 
a first round funding application to Heritage Lottery Fund 

 
10. LEISURE FACILITIES STRATEGY AND PRINCE OF WALES STADIUM 

FEASIBILITY OPTIONS 
The Cabinet Member Sport and Culture introduced the report and explained 
that as part of the commissioning review, a Leisure Facilities Strategy had been 
written and feasibility studies had been undertaken to consider the current 
operation of the site and a range of future options including changes to the use 
of existing spaces and the possible addition of new facilities on the site that 
complimented the current offer. Leisure provision in Cheltenham was good but 
considerations of the report included installing a modern 3G pitch on or 
alongside the Prince of Wales training pitch and the addition of a competition 
standard BMX track. Stakeholder engagement had been positive and thorough. 
Agreement was sought from Cabinet to commence detailed discussions with 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
- 5 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 17 September 2013 
 

tenants and key users of the Stadium, to negotiate future usage arrangements 
and to look at the strategic vision of creating a sporting hub in Pittville Park. 
Members welcomed the report and highlighted the importance of maximising 
the use of its existing resources and creating a better facility used by more 
residents. 
 
RESOLVED that 

1. the commencement of detailed discussions with tenants and key 
users of the Prince of Wales Stadium to negotiate future usage 
arrangements be agreed 

2. the strategic principle that facility development and future 
investment for sport and leisure within the town be focussed on 
Leisure@ and the Prince of Wales Stadium be supported, as 
recommended in the Leisure Strategy and associated feasibility 
studies  

3. the detailed business cases for future investment to deliver 
specific capital developments at a later date, following the 
successful establishment of a new charitable trust for leisure and 
culture be considered. 

 
11. FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2012/13 AND QUARTERLY BUDGET MONITORING 

REPORT TO END OF MAY 2013 
The Cabinet Member Finance introduced the report and welcomed the £200 
000 saving which had been delivered in 2012/13 which he proposed be used 
to strengthen the General Reserve.  
 
The Cabinet Member referred to the carry forward requests, which totalled 
£186 500, some of which included changing the purpose of the spending 
slightly to which was originally budgeted for. He reported that Ubico had made 
a significant saving and it was proposed that £170,000 of this saving was 
used to reinvest in new vehicles, technology and training. He also reported 
that not all the £100 000 allocated to the Innovation Fund which was for the 
purposes of promoting retail and businesses had been spent. It was 
suggested that the scheme would continue and be promoted more but it was 
proposed that some of the funding be used for other purposes such as 
business improvement districts which the Cheltenham Business Partnership 
was keen to explore.  
 
It was proposed that £24 000 would be used to purchase new equipment 
suitable for cleaning the slabs and bonded gravel in and around the 
Promenade. 
 
The Cabinet Member Finance explained that the Council had raised a loan for 
the purposes of the runway safety project for Gloucestershire Airport based 
on the business plan. The Airport had showed disappointing growth and had 
asked for the repayment of the loan to be extended. The Treasury 
Management Panel had discussed this and agreed that this should be 
approved but reviewed every year. He therefore proposed an amendment to 
recommendation 5 of the report to read “Approve the revision to the Treasury 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
- 6 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 17 September 2013 
 

Management Policy to reflect the revised borrowing facility to support the 
airport, subject to annual review.” This amendment was supported by 
Members. 
 
The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) had been revised following the 
recent Government funding announcement. The Council would lose £700 000 
in 2014/15 and a further £500 000 or more in 2015/16 therefore there was an 
increase in the medium term funding gap. The Council would therefore need 
to work harder to deliver savings without impacting frontline services. 
 
The Cabinet Member Housing and Safety paid tribute to the hard work of 
officers and highlighted that there had been no significant increase in housing 
arrears despite the rent increase. 
 
The Cabinet Member Sustainability welcomed the reinvestment of Ubico 
savings in services and stated that this would be reflected in service delivery 
over the next year or two. 
 
The Leader clarified that the report would be submitted to Council for approval 
on Monday 22 July.  
 
 
RESOLVED that the following recommendations be approved ; 
 
1. Receive the financial outturn performance position for the General 

Fund, summarised at Appendix 2, and note that services have been 
delivered within the revised budget for 2012/13 resulting in a saving 
(after carry forward requests) of £201,801. 

 
2. Recommend that Council approve the following : 

 
2.1 Approve £216,400 of carry forward requests (requiring member 

approval) at Appendix 6. 
2.2 Approve the transfer of the budget saving of £201,801 to general 

fund balances. 
 
3. Note the updated MTFS and budget strategy at Appendix 4. 
4. Note the treasury management outturn at Appendix 8 and approve 

the actual 2012/13 prudential and treasury indicators. 
5. Approve the revision to the Treasury Management policy to reflect 

the revised borrowing facility to support the airport, subject to 
annual review (Appendix 9). 

6. Approve the amendments to financial rule I9 in respect of write-off 
limits as set out in appendix 15 (section 7). 

7. Approve the High Street Innovation Fund reallocation (section 8). 
8. Note the capital programme outturn position as detailed in Appendix 

11 and approve the carry forward of unspent budgets into 2013/14 
(section 10). 

9. Note the position in respect of section 106 agreements and 
partnership funding agreements at Appendix 12 (section 11). 

10. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for council tax 
and non domestic rates for 2012/13 in Appendix 13 (section 12). 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
- 7 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 17 September 2013 
 

11. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for sundry 
debts for 2012/13 in Appendix 14 (section 13). 

12. Receive the financial outturn performance position for the Housing 
Revenue Account for 2012/13 in Appendices 16 to 17 (section 14). 

13. Note the budget monitoring position to the end of May 2013 (section 
15). 

 
12. LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME (LCTS)-ITEM DEFERRED TO 17 

SEPTEMBER 
This item was withdrawn and would be referred to the next meeting of Cabinet 
on 17 September 2013. 
 

13. BRIEFING FROM CABINET MEMBERS 
The Leader informed Members that the LGA had published a new document 
entitled “Rewiring Public Services”. This was an important, cross party LGA 
publication which outlined a vision for the way forward for local government 
finance. It was important that this document was discussed at a borough level 
and he would be reflecting how best to pursue this with all Councillors. 
 
The Leader of the Council then informed the meeting that he had attended the 
recent opening of a business incubation unit which was a joint initiative between 
the University of Gloucestershire and the Chamber of Commerce. This 
represented an integrated business support and incubation service to assist 
young start-up businesses. 
 
The Cabinet Member Leisure and Culture stated that the 30 day challenge 
period under the Leisure and Culture procurement process had now elapsed 
and since there were no challenges, officers could now proceed to the next 
stage. 
 

14. MEMBER DECISIONS TAKEN SINCE THE LAST CABINET MEETING 
The Leader informed Cabinet that he had taken a decision, published that day, 
as a Ubico shareholder with regard to the Ubico fuel and maintenance contract.  
 

15. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972-EXEMPT BUSINESS 
RESOLVED 
 
That in accordance with Section 100A (4) Local Government Act 1972 the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the remaining agenda item as it is 
likely that, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the 
nature of the proceedings, if members of the public are present there will 
be disclosed to them exempt information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 5 
Part (1) Schedule (12A) Local Government Act 1972, namely : 

 
Paragraph 3; Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
any particular  
person (including the authority holding that information) 
 
Paragraph 5; Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
- 8 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Tuesday, 17 September 2013 
 

16. A TREASURY MANAGEMENT MATTER 
The Cabinet Member Finance introduced the report and provided members with 
the background to the issue. He also advised that the Treasury Management 
Panel had met to discuss this and had supported the recommendation of the 
report and had highlighted the council’s investment strategy of minimising risk 
as a priority. Finance officers updated members on new information which had 
come to light and members discussed whether this should be reflected in the 
recommendation. Cabinet decided that in order to maintain flexibility it would 
support the original proposal. 
  
The Cabinet Member Finance took the opportunity to thank the finance officers 
for their hard work on this issue alongside the work involved in finalising the 
financial outturn report. 
 
 
RESOLVED that  
 
The Director of Resources, in consultation with the Leader and the 
Cabinet Member Finance, be authorised to conclude arrangements and 
sign documentation for the matter concerned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Chairman 

 

Page 8



 

   

$mzxjpwlx.doc Page 1 of 8 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 17th September 2013 

Local Council Tax Support Scheme (LCTS) 
 

Accountable member Councillor John Rawson, Cabinet Member Finance  
Accountable officer Mark Sheldon, Director of Resources  
Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes  
Executive summary In December 2012 cabinet approved a local council tax support scheme for 

2013/14 and resolved that work should commence on developing a long 
term scheme from April 2014 which reduces council tax support costs, 
protects vulnerable people and keeps work incentives.  
Delays in welfare reforms and the uncertainty of long term funding of the 
LCTSC scheme after April 2015 would put the local authority at risk if we 
consulted and approved a scheme that continued after March 2015. 
Following a joint working group meeting of section 151 officers and finance 
officers from the county on 8th July 2013, it was agreed to recommend to all 
councils in Gloucestershire to keep the LCTS scheme for 2014/15 
unchanged and to carry out a short public consultation on this basis.   
Approval is being sought to keep the LCTS scheme unchanged for 2014/15 
other than the annual uprating of premiums, allowances and non dependant 
deductions and to give delegated powers to the section 151 officer to agree 
the content of any future public consultation.   

Recommendations a) To keep the Local Council Tax Support scheme unchanged for 
2014/15, other than the annual up rating of premiums, allowances and 
non dependant deductions. 
b) To approve a public consultation of eight weeks on this basis.   
c) To delegate to the Section 151 officer, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member Finance, the power to agree the content of future 
public consultation on any Local Council Tax support scheme.  

 

Agenda Item 5
Page 9



 

   

$mzxjpwlx.doc Page 2 of 8 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

Financial implications The funding for the LCTS scheme was reduced by approximately 9% in 
2013/14 (c£77k) and changes were made to council tax empty property 
exemptions and second home discount to help offset the reduction in 
funding.  
In 2013/14 Cheltenham qualified for transitional funding, but this will not be 
repeated in 2014/15.  
The level of funding for the local council tax support scheme for 2014/15 is 
due to remain the same as 2013/14, but actual amounts have yet to be 
confirmed.  
The Government are reviewing the long term funding arrangements for 
LCTS and therefore there is a risk to committing to a long term scheme, if 
funding levels are drastically reduced.    
Contact officer: Mark Sheldon, mark.sheldon@cheltenham.gov.uk,                          
01242 264123                 

Legal implications The procedures for making and revising council tax reduction schemes are 
prescribed in schedule 1A Local Government Finance Act 1992. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis, peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk,               
01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None arising from this report 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 264355 

Key risks As outlined in the report 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

 
None  

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

None  

Contact officer:   David Roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Page 10



 

   

$mzxjpwlx.doc Page 3 of 8 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

1.Background 
1.1 The Welfare Reform Act 2012 abolished Council tax benefit. Under the Local Government 

Finance Act 2012 local authorities had to design their own Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) 
scheme which protected pensioners.  

1.2 Prior to the implementation of the countywide scheme in 2013/14, a consultation was undertaken. 
Although we were consulting on a scheme that was basically the same as the old council tax 
benefit scheme, the opportunity was taken to ask for the views on changes that could be made in 
the future to reduce the level of support given. The results showed that there was very little 
support for changing the scheme.  

1.3 Billing authorities are the lead authorities in the design and implementation of a local scheme but 
have a duty to consult with major preceptors and other interested parties. Regular meetings have 
taken place with all six district councils, the County and Police to monitor the financial implications 
of the current scheme and to work together on the scheme for 2014/15 in Gloucestershire.   

1.4 The biggest financial impact of decisions we make about the scheme will be felt by the County 
and the Police and without a clear indication of long term funding after 2014/15, they are unable 
to make a decision on a revised scheme beyond 2014/15.   

1.5 At a meeting of section 151 officers and accountants from the County Council on 8th July 2013, it 
was agreed to recommend that the LCTS scheme should remain unchanged for 2014/15 in 
Gloucestershire.  

1.6 During 2014/15 we should receive the funding arrangements for 2015 onwards and have a better 
idea of the effect the welfare benefit changes have had on customers. We should also have 
actual figures on the additional income generated from the exemption/discount changes and 
feedback from other councils who did not adopt the default scheme about the impact on council 
tax recovery and cost of collection. 

1.7 If cabinet approve the recommendation to keep the LCTS scheme unchanged for a further year, 
other than the annual uprating of allowances, premiums and non dependant deductions, then the 
public consultation will be for eight weeks and will be web based.    

2. Funding from April 2014 
2.1 The Government funding for the LCTS scheme was expected to be cut by approximately 10% in 

2013/14. Consequently this Council made changes to council tax empty property exemptions and 
second home discount to help offset the shortfall. 

2.2 Initial figures seem to suggest the funding shortfall on LCTS will be around 9% for 2013/14, which 
works out to be £3,207,238 across the county and around £77,000 for the Cheltenham 
district/parish part of the charge.  

2.3 Due to the nature of empty property exemptions and the fact the first month is 100% exempt, the 
next five months 25% exempt and then the full charge after six months, it is difficult to predict with 
any accuracy the increased income generated until the end of the year. Additional income has 
also been raised by removing the 10% discount on second homes.  

2.4 In 2013/14 the Government provided transitional funding for councils which adopted either the 
default scheme (which Gloucestershire councils did) or a scheme that kept the loss of council tax 
support to working age customers to less than 8.5%. The transitional grant across the county was 
£906,734 and Cheltenham received £21,980.                                                                      

2.5 The Government originally stated that the level of funding for the Local Council Tax Support 

Page 11



 

   

$mzxjpwlx.doc Page 4 of 8 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

scheme for 2014/15 would be the same as 2013/14 and would then be reviewed long term in the 
next spending cycle. We are awaiting confirmation of actual amounts for 2014/15, but indications 
seem to suggest a reduction in Government funding from at least 2015/16.  

2.6 Whilst it would be preferable to implement a scheme in 2014/15 that can remain unchanged for a 
number of years, negating the need for annual consultation, we must take into account the annual 
reduction in funding that may be experienced long term. We also need to bear in mind that the 
biggest impact of decisions we make about the scheme will be felt by the County and the Police 
and they are unable to make a decision on a revised scheme beyond 2014/15.   

3. Reasons for recommendations  
3.1 Based on estimates in 2012/13 the additional income generated from changes to exemptions and 

second home discounts is expected to fully cover the funding shortfall in 2013/14 without using 
the one off transitional grant for Cheltenham.   

3.2 Long term funding of the Local Council Tax Support scheme is being radically reviewed along 
with other funding streams and therefore until we receive figures it will be unwise to consult and 
adopt a long term scheme at this stage. 

3.3 The welfare reform changes have been delayed, with a benefit cap only recently implemented in 
Gloucestershire and Universal Credit for new customers unlikely to start in our area until April 
2014 at the earliest. Existing customers who don’t have any changes in their circumstances will 
not transfer to Universal Credit until 2016 to 2018.  

3.4 No accurate data is currently available from councils who did not adopt the default scheme in 
2013/14, to compare the increased cost of collection, council tax outstanding and recovery work 
involved from asking council tax payers on a low income to contribute more towards their council 
tax.     

4. Alternative options considered 
4.1 Officers considered the potential for a cut in benefit levels but this was discounted on the basis of 

the impact, including the impact on low paid residents, as well as the additional administrative 
costs and potential increased level of write offs involved in generating large number of small bills 
for residents who had not been used to paying council tax. No other alternatives were considered 
as the County confirmed they were happy to keep the scheme unchanged for a further year, 
based on the predicted increase in empty property exemptions across the district councils and the 
transitional grant received in 2013/14.  

5. Consultation and feedback 
5.1  Council officers have been working with all Gloucestershire district councils on these proposals 

and have consulted with the County Council and Gloucestershire Police Authority. 

6. Performance management –monitoring and review 
6.1 The benefits service will monitor any increased take-up of council tax support and any significant 

changes will be reported to cabinet.  

Report author Contact officer: Paul Aldridge, Paul.Aldridge@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 264196 

Page 12



 

   

$mzxjpwlx.doc Page 5 of 8 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment   
Background information 1. Financial spreadsheet for 2013/14 

Page 13



 

   
$mzxjpwlx.doc Page 6 of 8 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 Financial risk if additional 
income generated from 
exemptions and discounts 
do not cover the loss in 
funding 

Mark 
Sheldon  

  
4 

 
3 

 
12 

 
Accept  

Monitor throughout 
year as part of the 
ongoing controls 

   

            
            
            
            
Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
Guidance 
Types of risks could include the following: 
• Potential reputation risks from the decision in terms of bad publicity, impact on the community or on partners;  
• Financial risks associated with the decision; 
• Political risks that the decision might not have cross-party support; 
• Environmental risks associated with the decision; 
• Potential adverse equality impacts from the decision; 
• Capacity risks in terms of the ability of the organisation to ensure the effective delivery of the decision 
• Legal risks arising from the decision 
Remember to highlight risks which may impact on the strategy and actions which are being followed to deliver the objectives, so that members can identify the need 

P
age 14



 

   
$mzxjpwlx.doc Page 7 of 8 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

to review objectives, options and decisions on a timely basis should these risks arise. 
 
Risk ref 
If the risk is already recorded, note either the corporate risk register or TEN reference 
 
Risk Description 
Please use “If xx happens then xx will be the consequence” (cause and effect). For example “If the council’s business continuity planning does not deliver effective 
responses to the predicted flu pandemic then council services will be significantly impacted.”    
 
Risk owner 
Please identify the lead officer who has identified the risk and will be responsible for it.  
 
Risk score 
Impact on a scale from 1 to 5 multiplied by likelihood on a scale from 1 to 6. Please see risk scorecard for more information on how to score a risk 
 
Control 
Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
Action 
There are usually things the council can do to reduce either the likelihood or impact of the risk.  Controls may already be in place, such as budget monitoring or new 
controls or actions may also be needed. 
 
Responsible officer 
Please identify the lead officer who will be responsible for the action to control the risk. 
For further guidance, please refer to the risk management policy 
 
Transferred to risk register 
Please ensure that the risk is transferred to a live risk register. This could be a team, divisional or corporate risk register depending on the nature of the risk and what 
level of objective it is impacting on  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Data for LCTS          
          

P
age 15



 

   
$mzxjpwlx.doc Page 8 of 8 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

   SDC  TBC  GCity CDC CBC  FoDDC GCC Police Total 
Estimated cost of LCTS 2013/14 6,776,000 4,302,000 8,727,000 4,851,000 7,073,000 5,958,000     37,687,000 
Current cost of LCTS Scheme 6,465,793 4,130,812 8,666,541 4,680,888 6,683,164 5,946,906     36,574,104 
Funding received (incl. parish share) 963,799 383,606 968,273 572,959 811,660 769,061 24,380,430 4,464,492 33,314,280 
Shortfall in funding across the county                  3,259,824 
Transitional Grant received (inc. parish ) 26,555 10,420 25,996 15,808 21,980 20,979 663,499 121,497 906,734 
                    
                    
Caseload June 13 - Pensioners 3,736 2509 4153 2910 3273 3495     20,076 
Caseload June 13 - Working age 3,503 2548 6747 2279 4960 3332     23,369 
Caseload 2011/12 - Pensioners 4,006 2,212 4,226 3,082 3,458 3,639     20,623 
Caseload 2011/12 - Working age 3,488 2,857 6,682 2,173 5,007 2,997     23,204 
          
Cheltenham data District/parish Police County Total       
Funding shortfall (9%) 76,448 81,561 443,476 601,485      
Less Transitional grant  -21,980 -22,965 -125,413 -170,358      
Additional income needed to cover 
shortfall   54,468 58,596 318,063 431,127      
from changes to exemptions and 
discounts           
          
 

P
age 16



 

Rebranding AG&M 170913   

version 7 Page 1 of 5 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 17 September 2013 

Re-branding Cheltenham Art Gallery & Museum 
 

Accountable member Councillor Rowena Hay, Cabinet Member for Sport & Culture  
Accountable officer Sonia Phillips, Director of Wellbeing & Culture 
Ward(s) affected Lansdown 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary This report sets out the basis on which the Cheltenham Art Gallery & 

Museum is re-branded following 18 months closure and the completion of 
the multi-million pound redevelopment project of the building. 
As part of the re-launch of the refurbished and extended Cheltenham Art 
Gallery & Museum a piece of work has been done to develop a new identity 
and image. The work was based on the outcome of a perceptions audit, 
which included consultation with internal and external key stakeholders, and 
which recommended that the re-opening provided a major opportunity for 
the Art Gallery & Museum to be re-branded. This report was finalised for 
publication pending the wider public feedback referred to in paragraph 2.4 
and Members will be advised of that feedback and the recommended 
branding at the Cabinet meeting. 

Recommendation That Cabinet approves the re-branding of the Cheltenham Art Gallery & 
Museum. 

 
Financial implications Costs contained within Art Gallery & Museum Development Scheme 

project budgets and ongoing revenue budgets. 
Contact officer:   Paul Jones,      paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 775154 

Legal implications None directly arising from the recommendation. 
Contact officer:  peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

No direct HR implications in this report 
Contact officer:   Donna Sheffield,  
donna.sheffield@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 774972 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6
Page 17



 

Rebranding AG&M 170913   

version 7 Page 2 of 5 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Key risks As set out within Appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The re-opening of the Art Gallery & Museum Redevelopment Project is 
specifically identified within the 2013/14 Corporate Strategy and 
contributes to the delivery of the arts and culture outcome :  
Arts and culture are used as a means to strengthen communities, 
strengthen the economy and enhance and protect our environment 
 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None as a direct result of this report 

1. Background 
1.1 The Cheltenham Art Gallery & Museum will re-open to the public on 5th October 2013 following its 

closure in April 2011 and the completion of the £5.9m redevelopment project. 
1.2 As part of the project a perceptions audit was commissioned which included consultation with key 

internal and external stakeholders including CAGM Friends; Cheltenham Chamber of Commerce; 
Cheltenham Festivals; Cotswolds Attractions Group; Oakwood Children’s Centre; The Everyman 
Theatre; Young People’s group and an independent media consultant.  

1.3 The consultation work involved stakeholders considering the following key aspects of the existing 
brand and image of the Cheltenham Art Gallery & Museum: 
• profile and positioning 
• brand values 
• personality  
• ethos and distinctiveness  
• audiences / participants, experiences  

1.4     The overriding feedback from the stakeholders and the recommendation from the perception audit 
was that a new brand was sought in order to fully maximise the impact of the re-opening of the 
Cheltenham Art Gallery & Museum.  The concept of creating a new brand for the Cheltenham Art 
Gallery & Museum was also supported by key partners of the Development Project: Heritage 
Lottery Fund, the Summerfield Trust, and Gloucestershire University.    

1.5     As a result, the Council procured the services of a creative design company, who were 
commissioned to consider the findings of the perception audit and, as appropriate put forward a 
number of options for consideration for the re-branding campaign.  

2.     Re-Branding Options 
2.1    Arthur Sheene Horne Adamson Ltd (ASHA) were appointed to undertake the work on the basis 

that the brand and image proposals put forward portrayed the range of cultural activities and 
opportunities that the Cheltenham  Art Gallery & Museum provides to the community and which, 
importantly reflected the heritage and history of the building.  

2.2     On 12th August 2013 ASHA presented three brand options to the Cabinet Member Sport & Culture, 

Page 18



 

Rebranding AG&M 170913   

version 7 Page 3 of 5 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

and Executive officers. Whilst the Cheltenham Art Gallery & Museum would retain the descriptive 
name, each of the brand options put forward carried a fresh, strong and modern image which, 
ASHA considered would very much maximise the marketing potential that the opening of the new 
Cheltenham Art Gallery & Museum will create. The three options presented were as follows: 
• C-MAG – the brand image depicts the acronym of the Cheltenham Art Gallery & Museum 

but in a different format : Cheltenham Museum &  Art Gallery 
• 51 – the brand image depicts the street number on Clarence Street where the Cheltenham 

Art Gallery & Museum is sited. 
• The Wilson – the brand image depicts the name of Edward Wilson, the scientific explorer, 

born in Cheltenham who died in the British Antarctica Expedition with Captain Scott, and 
whose father opened the Cheltenham Art Gallery & Museum in 1907 

2.3 As a result of the presentation, ASHA recommended that the Wilson is used as the brand image 
going forward. However, before adopting this it was agreed that a further presentation with wider 
external stakeholders should be arranged to include the Friends of the Art Gallery & Museum, the 
Gloucestershire Guild, Cheltenham Festivals as well as staff members and Cabinet Members, 
which was held on August 20th. 

2.4 In addition, the importance of engaging with the wider community and the public was recognised, 
Therefore before the final decision is made by Cabinet engagement with public has been sought. 
An media briefing was held on September 5th, with the press encouraging the public to comment 
and provide feedback on the proposal. 

3 Reasons for recommendations 
3.1   As set out in the report 

4 Consultation and feedback 
4.3  As set out in the report 
 

Report author Contact officer:   Jane Lillystone. Jane.lillystone@cheltenham.gov.uk           
01242 775706 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
 

Background information 1. Cabinet Report Art Gallery & Museum Development Scheme April 
2007. 

 

Page 19



 

Cheltenham AG&M Re-branding report   
$qsqmtzr2.doc Page 4 of 5 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1.0 If the Cheltenham Art Gallery & 
Museum  is not re-branded then 
it may not maximise its full 
potential as a newly opened 
cultural venue.  

SP 30.08.13 3 2 6 Reduce Re-brand the new AG&M 05.10.13 JL  

2.0 If the Cheltenham Art Gallery & 
Museum is not re-branded then 
the Council may receive 
negative comments from key 
stakeholders involved with the 
perceptions audit.   

SP 30.08.13 3 2 6 Reduce Re-brand the new AG&M  05.10.12 JL  

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 
Guidance 
Types of risks could include the following: 
• Potential reputation risks from the decision in terms of bad publicity, impact on the community or on partners;  
• Financial risks associated with the decision; 
• Political risks that the decision might not have cross-party support; 
• Environmental risks associated with the decision; 
• Potential adverse equality impacts from the decision; 
• Capacity risks in terms of the ability of the organisation to ensure the effective delivery of the decision 
• Legal risks arising from the decision 
Remember to highlight risks which may impact on the strategy and actions which are being followed to deliver the objectives, so that members can identify the 
need to review objectives, options and decisions on a timely basis should these risks arise. 

P
age 20



 

Cheltenham AG&M Re-branding report   
$qsqmtzr2.doc Page 5 of 5 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

 
Risk ref 
If the risk is already recorded, note either the corporate risk register or TEN reference 
 
Risk Description 
Please use “If xx happens then xx will be the consequence” (cause and effect). For example “If the council’s business continuity planning does not deliver 
effective responses to the predicted flu pandemic then council services will be significantly impacted.”    
 
Risk owner 
Please identify the lead officer who has identified the risk and will be responsible for it.  
 
Risk score 
Impact on a scale from 1 to 5 multiplied by likelihood on a scale from 1 to 6. Please see risk scorecard for more information on how to score a risk 
 
Control 
Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
Action 
There are usually things the council can do to reduce either the likelihood or impact of the risk.  Controls may already be in place, such as budget monitoring 
or new controls or actions may also be needed. 
 
Responsible officer 
Please identify the lead officer who will be responsible for the action to control the risk. 
For further guidance, please refer to the risk management policy 
 
Transferred to risk register 
Please ensure that the risk is transferred to a live risk register. This could be a team, divisional or corporate risk register depending on the nature of the risk 
and what level of objective it is impacting on  

P
age 21



Page 22
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$nt0v2uhz.doc Page 1 of 9 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet Meeting – 17th September 2013 

Request for consent for the council to enter into a deed dedicating 
Weavers Field and The Burrows Playing Field as Queen Elizabeth 

II Fields with the organisation Fields in Trust 
 
 

Accountable member Roger Whyborn, Cabinet Member Sustainability 
Accountable officer Grahame Lewis 
Ward(s) affected Warden Hill and Leckhampton 
Key Decision Yes/No  
Executive summary Requests have been made by councillors to consider dedicating Weavers 

Field and The Burrows Playing Field as Queen Elizabeth II Fields with the 
organisation, Fields in Trust (the operating name of the National Playing 
Fields Association).  
The NPFA are the Trustees of the Charity, ‘King George’s Fields 
Foundation’. There are 471 dedicated King George’s Fields including one in 
Cheltenham. 
The Queen Elizabeth II Fields Challenge is a legacy initiative to mark both 
the Queen’s Diamond Jubilee and the London Olympics.  
Legal advice is that this dedication has to be a Cabinet decision. 

Recommendations To support the signing of a Deed Of Dedication with Fields in Trust 
pertaining to Weavers Field and The Burrows Playing Field to protect 
their existing use. 

 
Financial implications  There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

Contact officer:   Sarah Didcote,    
Sarah.Didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264125 

Legal implications Entering into the deed will fetter the Council’s power to deal with the land, 
as set out in the report. If any buildings on the relevant area of land are 
also dedicated, they too will be bound by the provisions of the deed, and 
will have to have regard to any advice given from time to time by Fields in 
Trust on the management and running of the property. 
The proposal would also incur minor Land Registry costs (in the region of 
£150). 
Contact officer:  Rose Gemmell,    
Rose.gemmell@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272014 

Agenda Item 7
Page 23



 

   

$nt0v2uhz.doc Page 2 of 9 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

No direct HR implications arising from this report 
 
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy HR Manager (GO Shared services),                
julie.mccarthy @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks No change to current land use 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

 2011-15 Corporate Strategy                                                                       
Objective:- Enhancing and protecting our environment                            
Outcome:- Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is enhanced and 
protected 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

The Deed of Dedication would safeguard the natural environment at both 
these green spaces. Weavers Field has the potential to be managed in a 
style that could encourage an increase in diversity while still providing 
informal recreation. The Burrows, while predominantly a sports field, also 
has the potential for an increase in diversity around its perimeter and a 
corresponding reduction in the inputs required to maintain a more natural 
environment.  

Property/Asset 
Implications 

 The dedication of the playing fields will fetter any future alternative uses 
for the land. 
Contact officer:   David Roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk 

 
Background 
1.1 In 2011, contact was made with this council by Fields in Trust [FIT] (the operating name for the 

National Playing Fields Association) to invite the councils interest in dedicating one or more sites 
for the Queen Elizabeth II Fields Challenge [QEII Field]  

1.2 The Queen Elizabeth II Fields Challenge is a legacy initiative to mark both the Queen’s Diamond 
Jubilee and the London Olympics. The aim is to protect 2012 playing fields and other recreational 
spaces to ensure access to outdoor sport, play and recreation for future generations. Areas 
designated as QEII Fields will be marked by a plaque and protected for public recreation by 
means of a deed of dedication. 

1.3 The Deed of Dedication is intended to protect the land in perpetuity and not allow changes from 
the permitted use as a playing field and recreation ground (clause 3.1) or to sell without consent 
by FIT. There is some flexibility whereby an exchange of sites is allowed for (clause 4.1). A blank 
copy of the Deed of Dedication is attached as appendix 2 

1.4 Suggestions have been made by councillors that two fields be considered for QEII Fields 
dedication. These are Weavers Field in Warden Hill and The Burrows Playing Field in 
Leckhampton. These are respectively a natural area used for informal recreation and a formal 
sports field. One Legal advise that a cabinet level decision is required on executing a Deed 
dedicating Weavers Field and The Burrows Playing Field as Queen Elizabeth II Fields with The 
Fields in Trust. 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
2.1 Dedication of these areas of open space as Queen Elizabeth II Fields engenders civic pride and 

provides this part of the Borough a lasting tribute and legacy to Her Majesty whilst ensuring 

Page 24



 

   

$nt0v2uhz.doc Page 3 of 9 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

continued use of the land for the purposes of external public recreation and enjoyment. 

3. Alternative options considered 
3.1 Do nothing and maintain the status quo.                                                                                                                                                                            

With regard to The Burrows Playing Field, there is some oversight to any proposed development 
the council may wish to make. Sport England is a statutory consultee on planning applications 
and development control matters involving the loss of existing or former playing fields. Sport 
England expect to be consulted on any proposal affecting playing fields of 0.2ha or more and any 
proposal resulting in the creation or loss of a major sports facility.                                                              
With regard to Weavers Field, there is the potential for a Nature Reserve designation to be put in 
place but previous discussions regarding this have met with local opposition.                                                                                                                             

 

4. Consultation and feedback 
4.1 Strong local support for measures to protect Weavers Field emerged during recent public 

consultations held regarding potential allotment sites 

5. Performance management –monitoring and review 
5.1  

Report author Contact officer:    tony.mcnamara@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 774519 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Deed of Dedication, blank 

Background information 1.  
 

Page 25



 

   
$nt0v2uhz.doc Page 4 of 9 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 Any risks associated with 
equality impact 

  1 1 1 None     
 Any environmental risks   1 1 1 None     
 Agreeing to dedication  

and then missing 
deadline to achieve this 
with FIT would risk 
adverse publicity 

  2 2 4 Reduce Have all relevant 
paper work ready to 
action if cabinet 
decision is to 
proceed 

Process 
to be 
completed 
within 4 
weeks of 
cabinet 
decision 
to meet 
FIT 
deadline 

  

            
            
Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 

P
age 26



 

   
$nt0v2uhz.doc Page 5 of 9 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Appendix 2 
Deed of Dedication, blank 

 
Document 3 

 

 

FIELDS IN TRUST – QUEEN ELIZABETH II FIELDS  

 Annotated Non-Charitable Deed of Dedication  

Local Authority Protected 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Party] (1) 
 

and 
 

National Playing Fields Association (2) 
 
 

 

[Site Name] 

 

 

 
 

Page 27



 

   
$nt0v2uhz.doc Page 6 of 9 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

THIS DEED OF DEDICATION is made on the  day of   20                              

 

BETWEEN  

 

(1) [PARTY 1] and its successors in title (the Council); and 

(2) NATIONAL PLAYING FIELDS ASSOCIATION, operating as Fields in Trust, of Kings Chambers, 15 Crinan 
Street, London N1 9SQ a Royal Charter Organisation established for charitable purposes (registered 
charity number 306070) and its successors in title (FIT)  

(the Council and FIT being together called the Parties) 

 

WHEREAS: 

 

1. The property more particularly specified in the Schedule (the Property) forms part of the corporate 
property of the Council. 

2. The parties have contracted in correspondence that the Property will be dedicated in the manner and for 
the purposes set out below (but without any intention to create any charitable trust), and in accordance 
with the mutual undertakings given by the parties.  

This clause establishes the contract. 

3. The Council gives the following undertakings:  

3.1 Not to use the Property or permit the Property to be used for any purpose other than as a [public 
playing field and recreation ground]; 

The user clause refers to the property being for “a public playing field and recreation ground”.  Depending on the 
property’s current or future use, the user clause can be amended by mutual agreement.  For example, it could 
include reference to open space or to buildings such as village or community halls or to public indoor leisure 
facilities.    

3.2 Subject to clause 4, not (in so far as it has the power to do so) to dispose of the Property without 
the consent of FIT;  

This clause establishes additional protection through FIT consistent with the objectives of the queen Elizabeth II 
Fields Challenge. 

3.3 It will not (in so far as it has the power to do so) erect any building or structure on the Property 
the use of which falls outside of the permitted use as stated in Clause 3.1 without the consent of 
Fields in Trust; 

Page 28



 

   
$nt0v2uhz.doc Page 7 of 9 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Decisions relating to new buildings and structures, or alterations of the same, which fall within the user clause are 
solely in the control of the landowner or its tenant(s). 

3.4 To inform FIT without delay of any proposals, intentions or decisions to dispose of or erect any 
structures on the Property; 

This clause supports the objective of protecting the site’s recreational use. 

3.5 To maintain the Property and so far as is consistent with its duties as a local authority to have 
regard to any advice given from time to time by FIT on the management and running of the 
Property; 

This clause establishes an advisory role for FIT without interfering with the management rights and 
responsibilities of the authority.  

3.6 To erect a notice on the Property in the form of a signage provided by FIT relating to the 
background of FIT and the Queen Elizabeth II Fields and giving recognition of financial support 
where required; 

 This is an essential part of the QEII Fields Challenge 

3.7 To apply within three months of the date of this Deed on form RX1 annexed hereto for the 
registration in the proprietorship register of the registered title of the Property at the Land 
Registry of a restriction to the following effect:  

“No disposition of the registered estate by the proprietor of the registered estate is to be registered without a 
written certificate signed by FIT of 15 Crinan Street, London N1 9SQ or by its  conveyancer that the provisions of 
paragraph 4 of The Deed of Dedication dated [   ] between [   ] (1) and National 
Playing Fields Association (2) have been complied with”; 

This is an essential part of the land registration and protection process.   

3.8 To apply within three months of the date of this Deed on form AN1 annexed hereto for the 
registration in the charges register of the registered title of the Property at the Land Registry of a 
notice to the following effect: 

“ A  Deed of Dedication dated [  ] between [   ] (1) and  National Playing Fields 

Association (2)”; and 

 

This is an essential part of the land registration and protection process.   

3.9 To notify FIT immediately once the registrations referred to in clauses 3.7 and 3.8 have been 
completed.  

4. Notwithstanding clause 3.2, FIT may at its absolute discretion consent to the disposal of the Property 
provided that the Council at the request of FIT: 

4.1 Replaces or agrees to replace the Property with a piece of freehold land approved by FIT which is 
of equivalent or better quality than the Property, with equivalent or better facilities than the 

Page 29



 

   
$nt0v2uhz.doc Page 8 of 9 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Property, of the same or greater dimensions than the Property, in the same catchment area as 
the Property, and as accessible to the public as the Property (the Replacement Site) and applies 
such of the proceeds of any sale of the Property as are necessary to do so; and 

4.2 Enters into another deed of dedication on the same terms as this Deed in respect of the 
Replacement Site.  

Clauses 4.1 and 4.2 take account of potential future change by guaranteeing flexibility in terms of specific location 
provided the specified criteria are met. 

5. FIT undertakes that it will: 

5.1 Not unreasonably withhold consent to disposal of the Property or the erection of any structures 
upon it, subject to its duty to perform its charitable objects and provided that the provisions of 
clause 4 of this Deed have been complied with; 

5.2 Respond without delay to any notifications of intended disposal or erection of structures, or to 
any requests for advice; and 

5.3 Notify the Council without delay of any concerns or matters of advice to which it requires the 
Council to have regard.  

6. The Council DEDICATES the property in celebration of the Diamond Jubilee of Her Majesty Queen 
Elizabeth II as a public playing field and recreation ground for the benefit of the inhabitants of  [  
 ] and thereabouts and the site will be titled the Queen Elizabeth II Field [   ] 

 

This is the essential naming clause referring to the dedication as a Queen Elizabeth Field.  The user 

definition (given as ‘playing field and recreation ground here) can be varied according to the site.   

 

IN WITNESS whereof this Deed of Dedication is executed the day and year first before written 

Page 30



 

   
$nt0v2uhz.doc Page 9 of 9 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

schedule  

All that freehold property known as land at [                            ] which is identified on the plan outlined in red and 
annexed to this Deed being Title Number [                         ]. 

 

 

 

EXECUTED as a DEED by affixing the  
The COMMON SEAL of  
[                                                  ]  
in the presence of:   
   

  Councillor 

  Councillor 

 

EXECUTED as a DEED by affixing the  
The COMMON SEAL of  
NATIONAL PLAYING FIELDS  
ASSOCIATION   
in the presence of:  
   

  Member of Council 

  Member of Council 

 

Page 31



Page 32
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$5vrjshr1.doc Page 1 of 4 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 17 September 2013 

Triennial review of the Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy 
 

Accountable member Councillor Peter Jeffries - Cabinet Member Housing and Safety  
Accountable officer Grahame Lewis – Executive Director  
Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No  
Executive summary The Council’s current Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy Statement was 

adopted by the Licensing Committee on the 4th of February 2011.   
Although there is no statutory requirement to undertake a triennial review of 
the policy statement, there is a commitment set out in the policy statement 
to do so at least once every three years to ensure the policy remains up to 
date and relevant. 
The decision at this stage is to merely approve the draft policy for 
consultation. 

Recommendations Cabinet is recommended to; 
1. Note the outlined changes to the draft policy statement, and  
2. Approve the draft policy statement at Appendix 2 for the 

purpose of consultation. 
 
Financial implications There are no direct financial implications in this report. 

Contact officer: Sarah Didcote, sarah.didcote@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 26 4125 

Legal implications The legal implications are contained in the report. 
Contact officer: Vikki Fennell, vikki.fennell@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 
01684 272015 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no direct HR implications in this report. 
Contact officer: Donna Shefflied, 
donna.sheffield@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 77  4972 

Key risks As identified in Appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Communities feel safe and are safe.  
Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community and involved in resolving 
local issues.  

Agenda Item 8
Page 33



 

   

$5vrjshr1.doc Page 2 of 4 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

1. Background 
1.1 Sexual Entertainment Venues (“SEVs” hereafter) are regulated under Schedule 3 of the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by Section 27 of the Policing and 
Crime Act 2009. 

1.2 The amended provisions were adopted by Council on the 11th of October 2010 when it also 
approved a draft policy statement for consultation. 

1.3 The current policy statement was adopted the Licensing Committee on the 4th of February 2011. 
1.4 Although there is no statutory requirement to undertake a triennial review of the policy statement, 

there is a commitment set out in the policy statement to do so at least once every three years to 
ensure the policy remains up to date and relevant. 

1.5 The draft policy statement is attached at Appendix 2. 
2. SEVs and Cheltenham 
2.1 There are currently no licensed SEVs in Cheltenham.   
2.2 Despite this a significant number of premises do offer infrequent sexual entertainment, primarily 

during the Cheltenham Hunt Festival. 
2.3 The Council cannot legitimately impose restrictions on infrequent sexual entertainment because 

the legislation provides exemptions for it.  The policy nonetheless seeks to promote responsible 
operation by premises wishing to offer infrequent sexual entertainment through the adoption of a 
code of practice for exempt sexual entertainment.  The code of practice was adopted this year via 
the Council’s Night Safe scheme and has certainly proven effective.  The 2013 Cheltenham Hunt 
Festival was the first one in many years where there was not a need to close any premises down 
for breaches or offences related to activities connected to sexual entertainment.  Feedback 
suggested that the adopted code of practice played a significant role in promoting better managed 
operations. 

3. Changes made 
3.1 Changes to the policy have been minimal due to the fact that there have not been significant 

changes in legislation or guidance.   
3.2 A breakdown of substantial amendments made to the adopted policy is attached at Appendix 3. 
4. Consultation  
4.1 Whilst there is no prescribed consultation period, a 12 week consultation will be undertaken in 

accordance with the Cabinet Office’s Code of Practice on Consultation. 
4.2 A list of consultees is attached at Appendix 4. 
4.3 At the conclusion of the consultation a further report will be submitted to Cabinet for consideration 

of the responses received and any amendments made to the policy statement as a result. 
4.4 The adoption of the amended policy will be responsibility of full Council in accordance with the 

Council’s constitution. 
5. Reasons for recommendations 

Page 34



 

   

$5vrjshr1.doc Page 3 of 4 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

5.1 To ensure the policy statement remains up to date with current legislation and common law and 
relevant to the needs of the borough. 

Report author Contact officer: Louis Krog, louis.krog@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 77 5004 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Draft Policy Statement  
3. Breakdown of Changes  
4. List of Consultees  

Background information 1. Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1982  

2. Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 
3. Home Office Sexual Entertainment Venues Guidance for England 

and Wales 
4. Agenda and minutes Council, 11th of October 2010 
5. Agenda and minutes Licensing Committee,  4th of February 2011 

 

Page 35



 

   
$5vrjshr1.doc Page 4 of 4 Last updated 05 September 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 Any risks associated with 
equality impact 

          

 Any environmental risks           

            

            

            

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 

P
age 36



 
 

Appendix 2 
 
 

 
 
 
 

SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE  
POLICY STATEMENT 

Schedule 3 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1982), as amended by 
Section 27 Policing and Crime Act 2009 

 
  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contents                                                                                                        
 

Page 37



 

 2

Preface      
         
The Borough of Cheltenham  
 
1. Introduction           
2. Definitions  
3. Making and Application  
4. Application for Grant of a Licence 
5. Plans 
6. Public Notices  
7. Variation of a Licence 
8. Renewal of a Licence 
9. Transfer of a Licence 
10. Determination  
10.1 Mandatory Grounds for Refusal 
10.2 Discretionary Grounds for Refusal 
11. Location of premises         
12. Granting a Licence   
13. Objections 
14. Hearings       
15. Appeals 
16. Fees  
17. Standard Conditions  
18. Specific Conditions 
19. Duration of Licence 
20. Exempt Sexual Entertainment Code of Practice 
21. Review 

      
APPENDIX 1 - Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues 
APPENDIX 2 - Sexual Entertainment Code of Practice  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 

 3

Preface 
 
This Policy Statement sets out the Council’s requirements for premises to be licensed as Sexual 
Entertainment Venues (“SEVs”) within the meaning of Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (“1982 Act”) as amended by Section 27 of the Policing and 
Crime Act 2009. 
 
Adoption of Schedule 3 also allows the Council to set terms and conditions and fees for the grant, 
variation, renewal and transfer of such licences and the number of premises to be licensed in an 
area, which may be nil. 
 
The Council adopted the original provisions of Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act for Sex Cinemas and Sex 
Shops on 25th April 1983 and the new provisions for SEVs under the amendments of the Policing 
and Crime Act 2009 on 11th October 2010.  
 
Consultation was conducted with local residents, existing and future potential holders of SEV 
licences in the Borough, the statutory responsible authorities under the Licensing Act 2003, and 
holders of Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates under the Licensing Act 2003 in the 
Borough. 
 
The Council does not take any moral stand in adopting this policy. The Council recognises that 
Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex establishment and that such businesses are a 
legitimate part of the retail and leisure industries. It is this Council’s role as the Licensing Authority to 
administer the licensing regime in accordance with the law. 
 
In formulating this policy statement consideration has been given to: 
 

a) The legal requirements of the 1982 Act (as amended); 
 

b) The Home Office Sexual Entertainment Venues Guidance for England and Wales; 
 

c) Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take all reasonable steps to reduce crime 
and disorder within the Borough; 

 
d) The Regulators Compliance Code; and 

 
e) The Provisions of Services Regulations 2009 and associated Department for Business, 

Innovation & Skills guidance. 
 
The legislation may be viewed here: 
 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1982/30 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Chapter 30 
 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/26/section/27 
Policing & Crime Act 2009 Part 2 Section 27 – Regulation of lap dancing and other sexual 
entertainment venues etc 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

 4

The Borough of Cheltenham  
 
The Authority is one of six district councils within Gloucestershire.   
 
The Area 
Until the late 1700s, Cheltenham was a small market town that became a fashionable resort after 
spa waters were discovered. Over the years it has attracted major employers and has gained a 
reputation for being an international festival town.  This, together with its architectural heritage, 
educational facilities and quality environment, makes Cheltenham an attractive place to live, work 
and play. 
 
The borough, which includes 5 parishes, has a population of approximately 115,000 who live in 20 
wards. The borough is mainly urban with some areas of surrounding countryside. It covers an area 
of approximately 4,680 hectares of which 17 % is designated as green belt and 22 % as an area of 
outstanding natural beauty. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 

 5

1.  Introduction 
 
1.1 This policy statement sets out the Council’s guidance, application procedure, terms and 

conditions relating to the regulation of SEVs. 
 
1.2 This policy statement will guide current licence holders, potential licence holders and the 

Council when considering applications for SEVs. 
 
1.3 This policy statement applies to every type of SEV (as defined in the Act) unless an 

exemption applies. 
 
1.4 Whilst each application will be considered on its individual merits, this policy statement is 

intended to give prospective applicants an early indication of whether their specific 
application is likely to be successful and the material facts that will be taken in to 
consideration when determining the application. This policy statement also sets out the 
expectations of the Council on the applicant when receiving an application. 

 
1.5 Applications for grant, variation and opposed applications to renew and/or transfer will be 

determined by the Council’s Licensing Committee. Unopposed applications to renew and/or 
transfer will be determined by the relevant director in accordance with the Council’s 
constitution and scheme of delegation.  

 
2.  Definitions 

 
The 1982 Act 
This refers to Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as 
amended by section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009. 
 
SEV 
Means Sexual Entertainment Venue as defined by section 27(3) of the Policing and Crime Act 2009. 
 
The Policy Statement 
This refers to this policy statement. 
 
The Relevant Locality 
The Council has resolved that the Relevant Locality shall be the Ward in which an application for a 
SEV licence has been made in respect of a premises, vehicle, vessel or stall.  
 
The Character of the Relevant Locality 
The character of the Relevant Locality where the premises is situated will be instrumental in 
determining whether or not the grant of a licence will be appropriate. This is a proper matter for the 
Council to consider based on local knowledge, factors and circumstances. 
 
The Council 
Means Cheltenham Borough Council. 
  
The Premises 
This is the premises, vessel, vehicle or stall which is subject to a SEV licence. The premises will be 
in possession of all appropriate consents and permissions required to operate. 
 
Permitted Hours 
These are the hours of activity and operation that have been authorised under the SEV licence.     
 
Town 
Core Commercial Area as outlined in the “Cheltenham Borough Local Plan” adopted July 2006.        

Page 41



 

 6

 
3.  Making an Application 
 
3.1 An application for the grant, variation, renewal or transfer of a SEV licence must be made in 

writing to the Council in accordance with the requirements set out below. 
 
3.2 The address at which the Council will accept applications and notices is:- 

 
a) By post/personal service to Licensing Section, Cheltenham Borough Council, Municipal 

Offices, Promenade, Cheltenham, GL50 9SA; 
 

b) By e-mail to licensing@cheltenham.gov.uk;  
 

c) By facsimile to 01242 77 4924; 
 

d) On-line via the gov.uk website. 
 
3.3 For all enquiries please contact the Licensing team on 01242 77 5200. 
 
4. Application for the Grant of a licence 

 
4.1 The Council may grant to any applicant a licence for the use of a premises as a SEV on 

such terms and conditions as specified by the Council. 
 
4.2 To apply for the grant of a SEV licence an applicant must:- 
 

a) Complete an application form;  
b) The relevant fee 
c) Submit a plan of the premises to which the application relates showing, amongst other 

things, all means of ingress and egress to and from the premises, parts used in common 
with any other building, and 

d) Details of how the premises lie in relation to the street. (See below) 
e) Submit a site plan scale 1:1250; 
f) Submit drawings showing the front elevation as existing and as proposed to a scale of 

(1:100) (see below); 
 
And must also; 
g) Display a notice on or near the premises (see below); 
h) Advertise the application in a local newspaper no later than 7 days after the date of the 

application; and  
i) Send a copy of the application and plan to the Chief Officer of Police for the area within 

7 days of making the application to the council. 
 

Application forms are available from www.cheltenham.gov.uk 
 

5. Plans 
 
5.1 The scale plan of the building, unless agreed in writing beforehand, must comply with the 

following: 
 

The plan shall be drawn at a scale of 1:100 and shall show — 
 

Page 42



 

 7

(a) The extent of the boundary of the building, if relevant, and any external and internal 
walls of the building and, if different, the perimeter of the premises; 

(b) The location of points of access to and egress from the premises; 
(c) If different from paragraph (1)(b), the location of escape routes from the premises; 
(d) In a case where the premises is used for more than one existing activity the area within 

the premises used for each activity; 
(e) Fixed structures (including furniture) or similar objects temporarily in a fixed location 

(but not furniture) which may impact on the ability of individuals on the premises to use 
exits or escape routes without impediment; 

(f) In a case where the premises includes a stage or raised area, the location and height of 
each stage or area relative to the floor; 

(g) In a case where the premises includes any steps, stairs, elevators or lifts, the location 
of the steps, stairs, elevators or lifts; 

(h) The dressing room of performers; 
(i) The area where performances take place; 
(j) Any private screened area where a performance(s) take place; 
(k) In a case where the premises includes any room or rooms containing public 

conveniences, the location of the room or rooms; 
(l) The location and type of any fire safety and any other safety equipment; and 
(m) The location of a kitchen, if any, on the premises. 
(n) The area(s) to be licensed must be clearly identified by outlining these areas in red. 
 

5.2 The plan must include a legend through which the matters mentioned are sufficiently 
illustrated by the use of symbols on the plan. 

 
6. Public Notices 
 
6.1 A notice must be displayed at or on the premises to which the application relates for a period 

of no less than 21 consecutive days beginning with the date of the application, where it can 
be conveniently read from the exterior of the premises.   

 
6.2 Where the premises cover an area of more than 50 square metres, a further identical notice 

must be displayed every 50 metres along the external perimeter of the premises abutting 
any highway.  

 
6.3 The notice must be on pale blue paper sized A4 or larger and printed legibly in black ink or 

typed in black in a font size equal to or larger than 16. 
 
6.4 The notice must state: 
 

a) the details of the application and activities that it is proposed will be carried on or from 
the premises,  

b) the full name of the applicant,  
c) the postal address of the premises, or in the case where there is no postal address, a 

description of the premises sufficient to enable the location and extent of the premises to 
be identified, 

d) the date, being 28 days after that on which the application is given to the council, by 
which objections may be made to the council and that the objections should be made in 
writing, 

e) that it is an offence knowingly or recklessly to make a false statement in connection with 
an application and the maximum fine (£20,000) for which a person is liable on summary 
conviction for the offence. 

f) A similar notice must be published in a local newspaper circulating in the area within 7 
days of giving the application to the Council (example The Gloucestershire Echo). 

 

Page 43



 

 8

7. Variation of a Licence 
 

7.1 The holder of a SEV licence may apply at any time for any variation of the terms, conditions 
or restrictions on or subject to which the licence is held. 

 
7.2 The process of applying for a variation is the same as that for applying for an initial grant 

except that a plan of the premises is not required unless the application involves structural 
alterations to the premises. 

 
Application forms are available from www.cheltenham.gov.uk 

 
8. Renewal of a Licence 

 
8.1 The holder of a SEV licence may apply for renewal of the licence. In order for the licence to 

continue to have effect during the renewal process, a valid application form together with the 
appropriate fee must be submitted before the current licence expires. 

 
8.2 The process of applying for the renewal of a licence is the same as that for applying for an 

initial grant except that a plan of the premises is not required.  
 
8.3 The Council will determine renewal applications on individual merits taking into account the 

facts of the application and any objections received. Opposed applications will be referred to 
the Council’s licensing committee for determination. The Courts have confirmed that 
Councils are entitled to look afresh at renewal applications and, accordingly, it is open to the 
Council to refuse to renew a licence even where there has been no change in the character 
of the relevant locality or in the use to which any premises in the locality are put. 

 
9. Transfer of Licence 

 
9.1 A person may apply for the transfer of a licence at any time. 
 
9.2 The process of applying for the transfer of a licence is the same as that for applying for an 

initial grant except that a plan of the premises is not required.  
 
 
10. Determination  
 
10.1 Mandatory Grounds for Refusal 
 
10.1.1 A licence will not be granted: 

 
a) to any person under the age of 18 years; 
 
b) to any person who is for the time being disqualified due to the person having had a 

previous licence revoked in the area of the appropriate authority within the last 12 months; 
 

c) to any person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an EEA State or was 
not so resident throughout the period of six months immediately preceding the date when 
the application made; or 

 
d) to a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State; or 

 

Page 44



 

 9

e) to any person who has, within a period of 12 months immediately preceding the date 
when the application was made, been refused the grant or renewal of a licence for the 
premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made, unless the 
refusal has been reversed on appeal.  

 
If the Council finds any of these grounds apply then it must refuse the application. 

10.2 Discretionary Grounds for Refusal 
 
10.2.1 A licence may be refused where: 

 
a) the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having been convicted of an 

offence or for any other reason; 
 
b) if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the business to which it relates 

would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of  a person, other than the applicant, 
who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if he made the 
application himself; 

 
c) the number of SEVs in the relevant locality at the time the application is made is equal to 

or exceeds the number which the Council consider is appropriate for that locality (nil may 
be an appropriate number for these purposes); 

 
d) that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having regard- 

 
• to the character of the relevant locality; or 
• to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or 
• to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in respect 

of which the application is made. 
 
10.2.2 Applications for the transfer of an issued SEV licence may only be refused on grounds (a) 

and (b) above. 
 
10.2.3 Any decision to refuse a licence must be relevant to one or more of the above grounds. 
 
11. Location of Premises 
 
11.1 In deciding the appropriate number of premises to be licensed, the Council must consider 

the character of the relevant locality and what is the appropriate number of SEVs for the 
relevant locality. The number can be ‘nil’. 

 
11.2 In considering if the grant, renewal or variation of the licence would be inappropriate, having 

regard to the character of the relevant locality or to the use of which any premises in the 
vicinity are put, the Council shall consider, inter alia, whether the grant of the application 
would be appropriate, having regard to: 

  
a) The fact that the premises are sited in a residential area; 
 
b) Whether the premises are sited near shops used by or directed to families or children, or 

on frontages frequently passed by the same; 
 
c) Whether the premises are sited near properties which are sensitive for religious purposes 

e.g. churches, mosques, temples; and/or 
 

Page 45



 

 10

d) Whether the premises are sited near premises or areas which are sensitive because they 
are frequented by children, young persons or families, including but not limited to 
educational establishments, leisure facilities such as parks, libraries or swimming pools, 
markets and covered markets. 

 
11.3 When determining an application for the grant of a SEV licence, the Council shall have 

regard to the policy statement, the relevant guidance issued by the Home Office and 
provisions set out above but subject to the overriding principle that each application will be 
determined on its merits. 

 
11.4 Applications in respect of premises must state the full address of the premises.  
 
11.5 Applications in respect of a vehicle, vessel or stall must state where it is to be used as a 

SEV. 
 
11.6 The Council would normally expect that applications for licences for permanent commercial 

premises would have planning consent for the property concerned. 
 
12. Granting a Licence 

 
12.1 All applications for the grant of a new SEV licence will be referred to the Council’s Licensing 

Committee for determination to take into account the criteria set as out above with regards to 
the character, relevant locality and the appropriate number of SEVs for the relevant locality.  

 
12.2 In determining the application the Licensing Committee will have regard to this policy 

statement, the merits of the application and any objections, if any, that have been made. In 
all cases, each application will be determined on its own merits. 

 
13. Objections 

 
13.1 When considering an application for the grant, renewal, variation or transfer of a SEV licence 

the Council will have regard to any observations submitted to it by the Chief Officer of Police 
and any objections that have been received from anyone else within the statutory 
consultation period. 

 
13.2 Any person can object to an application provided that the objection is relevant to the 

discretionary grounds for refusal of a licence. 
 
13.3 Objections should not be made on moral grounds or values and the Council will not consider 

objections that are not relevant to the grounds mentioned above.  
 
13.4 Objectors must give notice of their objection in writing, stating the general terms of the 

objections. 
 
13.5 Where the Council receives notices of any objections it will, before considering the 

application, give notice in writing of the general terms of the objection to the applicant. 
However, the Council shall not without the consent of the person making the objection reveal 
their name or address to the applicant. 

 
13.6 Objections may only be made within the period of 28 days following the date on which the 

application was made to the Council. 
 
 
 

Page 46



 

 11

14. Hearings 
 

14.1 Where applications are referred to a Licensing Committee, the hearing will take place within 
20 working days of the end of the period in which objections may be made. 

 
14.2 The hearing provides all parties to the application, including those making objections, the 

opportunity to air their views openly and those views will be considered by the Licensing 
Committee. 

 
 
15. Appeals 

 
15.1 There is no right of appeal: 
 

a) Against the mandatory grounds for refusal as detailed in section 10.1.1 (a), (b), (c), (d), 
and (e) above, unless the applicant can prove that the ground of refusal does not apply 
to them, and  

 
b) Against the grounds as detailed in Section 10.2.1 (c) and (d) which can only be 

challenged by the applicant by way of judicial review. 
 
15.2 All relevant grounds for appeal, other than these detailed at point (a) and (b) above can be 

made to the Magistrates Court within 21 days from the date on which the person is notified 
of the decision. 

  
16. Fees 

 
16.1 The fees set are deemed to be reasonable to cover the cost of administration, enforcement 

against licensed operators, inspections and any hearings and are not refundable. 
 
 
17. Standard Conditions 

 
17.1 The Standard Conditions for Sexual Entertainment Venues are attached at Appendix 1. 
 
18. Specific Conditions 

 
18.1 Under schedule 3(8) of the 1982 Act the Council may grant to an applicant, and from time to 

time renew, a licence for SEV on such terms and conditions and subject to any restrictions 
as may be specified. These specific terms and conditions will be tailored for each individual 
premises and each type of SEV licence. 

 
19. Duration of Licence 

 
19.1 The Council, unless there are exceptional circumstances for doing so, shall grant a licence 

for the maximum duration of one year at a time, to provide certainty to those persons 
operating businesses. 

 
 
 
 

Page 47



 

 12

20. Exempt Sexual Entertainment Code of Practice 
 
20.1 The Government has seen it fit to exempt infrequent sexual entertainment from requiring a 

licence. Whilst the Council recognises and accepts this, it is also acutely aware that unless it 
is properly managed there are risks to public protection & safety, an increased likelihood of 
associated crime & disorder and an inability of regulatory bodies to respond accordingly. 

 
20.2 Whilst the Council cannot legitimately impose restrictions on infrequent sexual 

entertainment, it has formulated an Exempt Sexual Entertainment Code of Practice.  The 
intention of the code of practice is to promote responsible and properly managed exempt 
sexual entertainment. The Council expects any premises wishing to offer infrequent sexual 
entertainment to adhere to the code of practice. 

 
20.2 A copy of the code of practice is attached at Appendix 2 of this policy statement. 
 
21. Review 
 
21.1 This policy statement will be reviewed at least once every three years. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



 

 13

APPENDIX 1 
 

STANDARD CONDITIONS REGARDING SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES 
 

General Conditions: 
1. The premises shall only permit adult entertainment between the hours of ….. hours and …… 

hours the following morning as determined by the licensing committee. 
 
2. Only activities which have previously been agreed in writing by the Council shall take place. 
 
3. The agreed activities shall take place only in designated areas approved by the Council. 
 
4. There shall not be displayed outside the premises, in the immediate vicinity, or elsewhere 

within the Town any advertisements, photographs or images that indicate or suggest that 
striptease-type dancing takes place on the premises. 

 
5. Any flyers advertising the adult entertainment must not display any photographs or images of 

the entertainment and any images must be approved by the Advertising Standards Agency and 
not be handed to persons who look under the age of 21. Any handbills must only be distributed 
after 19.00hrs with the exception of race days. Examples of the handbills that are in use shall be 
lodged with the licensing authority prior to their distribution.   

 
6. No flyers or similar promotional material for the premises shall be distributed within the Town. 
 
7. Rules shall be produced by the licensee for customers indicating conduct that is deemed 

acceptable. These rules shall be prominently displayed at all tables and at other appropriate 
locations within the club. 

 
8.  A clear Notice shall be displayed inside the entrance to the premises in the following terms: 

“Striptease-style entertainment takes place on these premises.  No persons under 18 shall be 
permitted in the premises.” 

 
9. The performance must not be visible from the street, and any person who can be observed 

from the outside of the premises must be properly and decently dressed.  Scantily-clad 
individuals employed in the premises must not exhibit themselves in the entrance or in the 
vicinity of the premises. 

 
10. When the premises are open for Striptease/Lap/Pole Dancing no person under the age of 18 

shall be permitted to be on the premises.  Anyone appearing to be under the age of 21 years 
shall be asked to produce valid photographic identification.  If this is not produced the individual 
shall be refused access. 

 
11. The premises shall maintain a Refusals Log whereby any occasion a person is refused entry 

shall be recorded and available upon request by the Police or an authorised officer of the 
Council. 

 
Conditions regarding Performers: 
 
12. Striptease and similar entertainment may only take place in ‘designated areas’ that are marked 

on the plan of the premises. 
 
13. The entertainment shall be provided by professional performers only.  The audience must at all 

times remain fully-clothed. 

Page 49



 

 14

14. Performers shall be aged not less than 18 years and the licence holder (or his nominated 
deputy who is authorised in writing) shall satisfy him/herself that this is the case by requesting 
valid photographic ID, if necessary, prior to the performance. 

 
15. A ‘Signing-in’ Register shall be kept at the premises that records the time that the performer 

starts and finishes at the premises.  This shall be made available for immediate inspection by a 
Police Officer or authorised Officers of the Cheltenham Borough Council (who will carry 
identification).  

 
16. During any performance there must be no physical contact between the performer and any 

member of the viewing public.  A safe distance of 90cms (36 inches) should be maintained 
between performers and customers during all performances. 

 
17. No performances shall include any sexual act with other performers. 
 
18. No performances shall include any sexual act with objects. 
 
19. There shall be no nudity by performers in public areas of the premises, unless the Council has 

agreed in writing that area may be used for performances of sexual entertainment. 
 
20. At the completion of the relevant entertainment the performers shall dress themselves 

immediately and leave the designated performance area.  Performers not engaged in 
performing shall not remain in any area in a state of undress. 

 
21. Performers are not to solicit, exchange addresses or telephone numbers with customers, liaise 

with customers of the premises, or incite customers to purchase alcoholic drinks. 
 
22. An appropriate room shall be set aside to provide changing and rest area for performers.  

Access to this room shall be restricted to performers only, whilst the performers are on the 
premises and shall be marked on the plan of the premises. 

 
23. Any bodily contact between entertainers or performers or any movement that indicates sexual 

activity or simulated sex between entertainers or performers is strictly forbidden. 
 
24. Entertainers or performers not performing must not be in a licensed area in a state of undress. 
 
25. There shall be prominently and legibly displayed a comprehensive tariff of all charges and 

prices in respect of relevant entertainment, including any charge for the company of any person 
working at the premises, which shall be placed in such a position that it can at all times be 
easily and conveniently read by persons inside the premises. 

 
Briefing: 
26. Prior to performers carrying out any activity on the premises, they shall be briefed (verbally or 

in writing) by the licence holder or his nominated deputy who is authorised in writing as to the 
conditions that pertain to these particular premises, including the fact that their activities will be 
recorded on CCTV. The performer(s) shall sign in the Register that they have been briefed. 

 
Door-Supervisors: 
27. Subject to a minimum of two, SIA-registered door-supervisors shall be employed at a minimum 

ratio of 1:50 customers on the premises whilst Striptease/Lap/Pole-dancing activity is taking 
place. 

 
28. The licence holder, or his nominated deputy who is authorised in writing, or door-supervisors, 

shall carry out regular monitoring of all areas of the premises to which the public have access, 
and shall intervene promptly, if necessary, to ensure compliance with Licence conditions by 
customers and performers. 

Page 50



 

 15

 
29. Door-supervisors shall regularly monitor the area immediately outside the premises for a 

distance of 30 metres in all directions and shall take steps to deal with (by alerting the Police if 
appropriate) any unsavoury activity that may be attracted to the vicinity due to the nature of the 
business.   

 
30. A dedicated SIA-registered door supervisor shall remain at all times in any ‘private’ 

performance area where performers are performing nude, and shall intervene promptly, if 
necessary, to ensure compliance with the Licence conditions.  

 
31. When performers leave the premises they are to be escorted to their cars or taxi by a door- 

supervisor or member of staff. 
 
CCTV System: 
32. A digital CCTV system shall be installed and be maintained in good working order, shall record 

at all times the premises are open, and recordings shall be kept for 14 days. The CCTV 
system is to be installed in all areas as recommended by the Police Crime Reduction Officer 

 
33. The CCTV recording device, controls and recordings shall be kept under suitable security to 

prevent unauthorised access/tampering.  Access shall be restricted to the licence holder or his 
nominated deputy who will be authorised in writing and no more than two designated persons. 

  
34. Unaltered CCTV recordings shall be provided on request (as soon as possible and in any 

event within 24 hours) to the Police or authorised Officers of the Cheltenham Borough Council 
(who will carry identification.)  

  
35. No CCTV footage is to be copied, given away or sold (except as required by Police/Council for 

investigation/enforcement purposes).  
 
36. Except in accordance with the requirements for CCTV as described above, no photographs, 

films or video recordings shall be taken of the performances.  Nor shall electronic 
transmissions of performances take place. 

 
37. Notices shall be displayed informing customers of the presence of CCTV. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 

 16

APPENDIX 2 - Sexual Entertainment Code of Practice 
 

1. Operators/licensees will notify the Council & Police Licensing Sections of events where 
sexual entertainment is due to take place. 

 
2. All sexual entertainment should only take place in one designated area inside the premises, 

and this shall not be visible from outside the premises. 
 

3. Private performances should only take place inside screened-off private booths. However, 
the front of these booths must not be covered or obstructed, so that managers and SIA door-
supervisors are able to monitor activity inside the booths. 

 
4. A clear notice should be displayed inside the entrance to the designated area stating: 

“Sexual entertainment takes place on these premises. No persons under 18 shall be 
admitted.” 

 
5. Scantily clad individuals performing in the premises must not exhibit themselves in the 

entrance to or in the vicinity of the premises and individuals not performing shall not remain 
in any area in a state of undress. 

 
6. Customers must at all times remain fully-clothed. 

 
7. During any performance there must be no physical contact between the performer and any 

member of the viewing public/private customer. 
 

8. A clear and visible delineated safe distance of 90cm (36 ins) should be maintained between 
performers and customers during all performances. 

 
9. No performance shall include any sexual act with other performers, customers or viewing 

public. 
 

10. An appropriate room shall be set aside to provide changing and rest area for performers. 
Access to this room shall be restricted to performers only. 

 
11. A minimum of one SIA registered door supervisor shall be employed in the designated area 

where sexual entertainment is taking place and they shall intervene promptly to ensure 
compliance with these rules. 

 
12. The area in which sexual entertainment is to take place shall be covered by CCTV from 

which footage shall be stored for a minimum of 14 days and produced to Police or Council 
officers on request. 

 
13. A list of all performers shall be available on the premises for immediate production if 

requested by Police or Council officers. This list shall contain full names, dates of birth and 
contact details (address or telephone number). 

 
14. Rules 2, 3, 5,7,8,9 and 10 shall be drawn to the attention of all performers and promoters 

prior to activity commencing. 
 

15. Rules 6, 7 and 8 shall be prominently displayed to customers at all tables and other 
appropriate locations within the premises.  

 
 
 

Page 52



Appendix 3 

Proposed Change to Current Policy Reason/Explanation  
 
Definition of “Town” (2. Definitions) 
 

 
The current policy makes reference to 
“the Town” without defining it.   
 

 
Para 5.1(n) – “The area(s) to be licensed 
must be clearly identified by outlining 
these areas in red.” 
 

 
New requirement relating to plans to 
clearly indicate the area(s) to be 
licensed. 

 
Para 8.3 - “The Council will determine 
renewal applications on individual merits 
taking into account the facts of the 
application and any objections received. 
Opposed applications will be referred to 
the Council’s licensing committee for 
determination. The Courts have 
confirmed that Council’s are entitled to 
look afresh at renewal applications and 
accordingly, it is open to the Council to 
refuse to renew a licence even where no 
change in the character of the relevant 
locality or in the use to which any 
premises in the locality are put.” 
 

 
To reflect High Court direction in the 
case of R (Alistair Lockwood Thompson) 
v Oxford City Council [2013] EWHC 1819 
(Admin). 
 
The inclusion of the updated paragraph 
will serve to inform prospective 
applications of the position with regards 
to the renewal of licences. 

 
Para 10.2.2 - “Applications for the 
transfer of an issued SEV licence may 
only be refused on grounds (a) and (b) 
above.” 
 

 
Clarify a technical point not currently 
stated in the policy. 

 
Para – “The fees set are deemed to be 
reasonable to cover the cost of 
administration, enforcement against 
licensed operators, inspections and any 
hearings and are not refundable.” 
 

 
To take in to account the direction from 
the Court of Appeal in the case of 
Hemming (t/a Simply Pleasure Ltd) & 
Ors, R (on the application of) v The Lord 
Mayor and Citizens of Westminster 
[2013] EWCA Civ 591. 
 
The Court of Appeal stated that licensing 
authorities cannot charge for the costs 
associated with the enforcement of 
unlicensed operators but can take into 
account the costs associated with the 
enforcement and regulation of licensed 
operators.  
 

 
Appendix 1 (Conditions regarding 
Performers) – “There shall be 
prominently and legibly displayed a 
comprehensive tariff of all charges and 
prices in respect of relevant 

 
An additional standard condition not 
currently being imposed on SEV 
licences. 

Page 53



Appendix 3 

entertainment, including any charge for 
the company of any person working at 
the premises, which shall be placed in 
such a position that it can at all times be 
easily and conveniently read by persons 
inside the premises..” 
 

“Exempt Sexual 
Entertainment Code of 
Practice 
The Government has seen it fit to exempt 
infrequent sexual entertainment from 
requiring a licence. Whilst the Council 
recognise and accept this, it is also 
acutely aware that unless it is properly 
managed there are risks to public 
protection & safety, an increased 
likelihood of associated crime & disorder 
and an inability of regulatory bodies to 
respond accordingly. 
Whilst the Council cannot legitimately 
impose restrictions on infrequent sexual 
entertainment, it has formulated an 
Exempt Sexual Entertainment Code of 
Practice.  The intention of the code of 
practice is to promote responsible and 
properly managed exempt sexual 
entertainment. The Council expect any 
premises whishing to offer infrequent 
sexual entertainment to adhere to the 
code of practice. 
A copy of the code of practice is attached 
at Appendix 2 of this policy statement.” 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Inclusion of the adopted code of practice 
for infrequent sexual entertainment not 
included in the current policy statement. 
 

 

Page 54



Appendix 4 

 

List of Consultees  
 

1. Gloucestershire Constabulary 
2. Other responsible authorities under the Licensing Act 2003 
3. Cheltenham Borough Council Elected Members 
4. Parish Councils 
5. Licensing Committee 
6. Trade Representatives 
7. Gloucestershire Safeguarding Children Board 
8. Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adult Board 
9. Premises licensed under the Licensing Act 2003 
10. Cheltenham Safe 
11. Gloucestershire Social Services 
12. Existing Sex Establishments 
13. Gloucestershire University – Student Union 
14. Members of the Public 
 

Page 55



Page 56
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$bz1dxed5.doc Page 1 of 8 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet 

17th September 2013 
Response to Recommendations of the Scrutiny Task Group on the 

Sex trade in Cheltenham 
 
 

Accountable member Councillor Peter Jeffries, Cabinet Member for Housing and Safety 
Accountable officer Tracy Brown, Partnership Team Leader 
Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision Yes 
Executive summary The Positive Lives Partnership and Cheltenham Safeguarding Forum have 

considered the recommendations within the Scrutiny report and have taken 
responsibility for moving forward those that require a partnership approach. 
The Partnerships will undertake work to raise awareness of the emergency 
housing available in Cheltenham, and then consider any further gaps in 
provision if necessary. 
A programme of activity to raise awareness of a variety of safeguarding 
issues has been planned by the Partnerships and will include not only 
initiatives related directly to the recommendations in the report but also 
wider safeguarding topics that the Partnerships felt were relevant to 
Cheltenham. 

Recommendations That Cabinet endorses the Partnerships actions as outlined in 
response to the recommendations set out in the report of the Scrutiny 
Task Group on the sex trade in Cheltenham. 

 
Financial implications As detailed in section 4 of the report. 

Contact officer:  Paul Jones,  paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 
775154 

Legal implications There are not direct legal implications arising out of this report. 
Contact officer: Sarah Farooqi, sarah.farooqi@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 
01684 272693 

Agenda Item 9
Page 57



 

   

$bz1dxed5.doc Page 2 of 8 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

Any training of front line staff would need to be clear on what is expected 
of those staff, and how they escalate concerns rather than trying to deal 
with it themselves. 
Contact officer:  Richard Hall,  Richard.hall@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
07801 123 276 

Key risks See appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The planned actions in the report are supportive of Corporate Plan 
outcome that communities feel and are safe 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

Neutral 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

N/A 

Contact officer:   David Roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Page 58



 

   

$bz1dxed5.doc Page 3 of 8 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

1. Background 
The Cheltenham Safeguarding Forum and Positive Lives Partnership were asked to consider the 
Overview and Scrutiny sex trade report and comment on the recommendations held within it.  The 
Partnerships saw this as an ideal opportunity to take part in some innovative joint initiatives in an 
area of work important to all agencies.  As such the Partnerships developed a number of actions 
to deliver the recommendations and has established task and finish groups to lead on delivery on 
their behalf.  

2. Recommendation 1 – Emergency Housing 
Recommendation from Overview and Scrutiny Report 
 
i. That the council should work with the Police, Public Protection Bureau and voluntary 
organisations to identify emergency facilities where vulnerable people can be housed safely 
for a short period. This will allow for victims to receive appropriate emotional support from 
trained professionals whilst also allowing the Police a sufficient period of time to interview 
them and build a case for prosecution. 

 
2.1 Initial discussion around the provision of emergency facilities for vulnerable groups gave rise to 

concerns that there may be some gaps in service.  However on further investigation the perceived 
gaps in service may be due to a lack of knowledge or understanding of the two new county 
contracts that cover this area.  The primary contract being for community based housing support 
that is now held in Cheltenham by P3.  This should provide a variety of housing based floating 
support for vulnerable groups.  In light of a lack of knowledge among partners about the new 
service the Positive Lives Partnership will undertake to support awareness raising of the new 
service.  It will then review in November whether Partners still feel there are gaps and then take 
necessary action either through discussions with County commissioners or within the Cheltenham 
Partnership.  The second contract that touches on this area is the recently commissioned 
Gloucestershire Domestic Abuse Support Service.  Discussions are being held with County 
commissioners to seek guidance if this service could cover the concerns raised about emergency 
housing related to those who have experienced sexual violence specifically as a result of the sex 
trade.   

 

3. Recommendation 2, 3, 4 – Safeguarding Weeks 
Recommendations from Overview and Scrutiny Report 
ii. That all Councillors should attend awareness sessions on safeguarding issues, particularly to 
learn about the warning signs that children, young people and vulnerable adults often exhibit if 
they are being abused or exploited. As community representatives with local knowledge and local 
intelligence, Councillors are in a good position to contribute towards this agenda. 
iii. That the council assist the Police and Public Protection Bureau in producing, promoting and 
distributing information to those who may be at risk of sexual exploitation or already be victims of 
it, to let them know where they can go for help and assistance. The task group recognises the 
challenges involved in making this information accessible to those who are fearful of authority or 
many not speak English as a first language. 
iv. That the council support the work of the Public Protection Bureau in raising awareness of 
prostitution and potential sexual exploitation. One issue focuses around making hoteliers more 
aware of the potential for their premises to be used for prostitution and exploitation purposes, and 
in response the task group recommends that the council use its links to the Cheltenham Hoteliers 

Page 59



 

   

$bz1dxed5.doc Page 4 of 8 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Associate to raise awareness of this issue, particularly in relevant periods such as the run up to 
‘race week’ 

3.1 The Positive Lives Partnerships and Cheltenham Safeguarding Forum felt that the promotion of 
key safeguarding messages as outlined in recommendations 2, 3, 4 could be done most 
efficiently through a safeguarding awareness week.  This would be an effective way to highlight 
the issues raised and also promote safeguarding to the wider public.  The idea of a partnership 
safeguarding awareness week has met with wide ranging support from organisations across all 
sectors and as such the Positive Lives Partnership did not want to miss an opportunity to 
capitalise on this support.  It has therefore been decided to run a programme of safeguarding 
events through the year along particular themes and aimed at a variety of audiences. 

3.2 Positive Socialising week – 16th – 20th September 
This week will coincide with the start of Freshers fortnight at the University of Gloucestershire.  It 
will capitalise on the already strong multi agency work that goes on at the time to welcome new 
university students to the area while keeping them safe and minimising disruption to the local 
community.  During the week the following activities will take place to highlight positive socialising 
across the community: 
• There will be poster campaign based on the Dorset Police’s successful Operation Protect 
initiative which highlights issues associated with sexual violence and alcohol.  These posters 
and also wristbands will be distributed across the Town highlighting the key safety messages 
and promoting support services. 
• The Sexual Assault Referral Centre will run training for frontline reception staff to give them key 
skills to support victims of sexual violence in the first instances before specialist services can 
take over.  The training will include information about procedures, myth busting and dealing with 
traumatised customers.  This will piloted with a small number of key agencies and if successful 
will be continued. 
• There has been an anecdotal increase in children being involved in mobile phone and internet 
usage that may make them vulnerable.  Schools will be targeted to raise awareness among 
Year 5 and 6 pupils and their parents of the issues.  The Police and Youth Support Team will 
offer interested primary schools bespoke sessions to look at the issue in depth these will 
continue throughout the year.  They will also run programmes is Cheltenham secondary schools 
tackling these issues and also positive relationship issues starting in the Autumn term and 
continuing throughout the academic year. 

3.3 Positive Living week – 28th October  - 1st November 
This week will highlight the issues around the safeguarding of vulnerable adults and older people 
as these areas can sometimes be overlooked.  This week was chosen as there will already be 
increased partnership working with vulnerable groups during this time due to the fear around 
Halloween and Bonfire night.  It is also a time of year as the days become shorter when 
vulnerable groups can become more isolated. 
• Gloucestershire Fire Service will deliver Safe and Sound training to frontline workers who go 
into people’s homes to help them identify risks.  There will also be the opportunity at the end of 
the training for support services associated with vulnerable adults and older people to advertise 
their services and disseminate information. 
• A personal safety leaflet previously published by the Cheltenham Community Safety Partnership 
aimed at older people will be revamped and distributed across Cheltenham.  It will be brought 
up to date and redesigned to include services for all vulnerable adults. 
• The ‘Keep Safe’ scheme will be re-invigorated.  The scheme encourages shops to offer a safe 

Page 60



 

   

$bz1dxed5.doc Page 5 of 8 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

place to vulnerable adults when they are out and about and may feel intimidated or confused.  A 
sign is displayed so a vulnerable adult knows they can be safe inside and staff in the shop are 
trained to support them and contact support agencies as necessary.  Shops currently 
participating will be asked if they need any additional support, new shops and organisations will 
be encouraged to join and the scheme will be re advertised to vulnerable groups and agencies 
who support them. 

 
3.4 Positive Relationships week – 10th February – 14th February 

The week beginning the 10th February has been chosen by the Partnerships as this will not only 
coincide with Valentine’s Day, when issues around relationships are in the spot light, but also be 
in time to raise awareness ready for an increase in some safeguarding issues during race week.  
Between now and February 2014 there is opportunity for the week to develop to ensure it is most 
effective but as a minimum it will include: 
• A safeguarding seminar for people in a position of authority in the town like the successful 
conference in February of this year 

 
• An hotelier event and information campaign in preparation for race week.  This could extend to 
other business groups that it may benefit 

 
• An awareness raising campaign about what a healthy relationship looks like and support if you 
think you may not be in one 

 
• Basic training for frontline workers in identifying sexual exploitation and domestic abuse. 

 
4. Funding 
4.1 It is still too early to understand what if any funding needs may arise from recommendation 1 

regarding Emergency Housing.  However once Positive Lives has all the information it requires 
any funding implications will be considered and reported as necessary.  All activities during the 
Safeguarding Weeks will be delivered in partnership with a variety of organisations who are 
committed to using existing resources creatively to support the weeks this will hopefully keep 
costs to a minimum.  There will however be some small costs and it is proposed that these may 
be met from the Cheltenham allocation from the Police and Crime Commissioner under priority 12 
“build confidence that Gloucestershire is a safe place to live, work, learn and visit".  The Health 
Inequalities funding that comes from Gloucestershire County Council’s public health department 
may also be able to be used.  The Positive Lives Partnership will consider these proposals at its 
September meeting.  

5. Monitoring and Review 
5.1 After each Safeguarding week there will be a review to look at impact, this will culminate in a 

report once all three have been delivered.  The report will make recommendations regarding 
possible future events and the most effective way to promote key safeguarding messages. 

Report author Contact officer: Tracy Brown, Partnerships Team Leader 
tracy.brown@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 

Page 61



 

   

$bz1dxed5.doc Page 6 of 8 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Background information 1. Final Report of the Scrutiny Task Group on the Sex trade in 
Cheltenham 

 

Page 62



 

   
$bz1dxed5.doc Page 7 of 8 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 If the Council doesn’t show 
leadership in this important 
area of work it may impact 
on the reputation of the 
Council within the 
community and partner 
agencies. 

Tracy 
Brown 

17/9/13 2 2 4 Accept Council Officers and 
Elected members 
continue to show 
leadership regarding 
safeguarding within the 
partnership structures 

Ongoing Tracy 
Brown 

 

 If messages surrounding the 
Safeguarding awareness 
weeks become confused it 
may impact on the reputation 
of the Council due to bad 
publicity 

Tracy 
Brown 

17/9/13 3 2 6 Accept Council Officers and 
Elected members 
continue to show 
leadership regarding 
safeguarding within the 
partnership structures 

Ongoing Tracy 
Brown 

 

            

            

            

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

P
age 63



 

   
$bz1dxed5.doc Page 8 of 8 Last updated 06 September 2013 
 

 
P

age 64



Agenda Item 12
Page 65By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 66
This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 13
Page 67By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 78
This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Briefing 
Notes 
 

Cabinet 17 September 2013 
 
Joint waste committee – business plan 
 
Cabinet member sustainability 

 
 
This note contains information to keep Members informed of matters relating to the work of the 
Committee but where no decisions from Members are needed.   
 
If Members have questions relating to matters shown, they are asked to contact the Officer 
indicated. 
 
Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee – business plan 
 
The Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee was established on 1 April 2013 and the council is 
represented by the leader and cabinet member sustainability.  At the first meeting for the 
committee on 31 July 2013 they approved the business plan, a copy of which is attached at 
appendix 1 of this briefing note.  The Plan is supplemented by an action plan for the financial year 
2013-14 and this is being implemented by the Joint Waste Team.   
 
The committee will start to look at the 2014/15 plan in the Autumn, and it is intended that in future 
years the annual plan will be approved by the Committee, following consultation, before the start of 
the financial year. 
 
The cabinet member working group on waste and recycling had early input into the plan and their 
views were incorporated.  Some of the key actions within the action plan are also reflected within 
the council’s own corporate strategy which was approved by Council in March so that workplans 
are aligned. 
 
Contact Officer:  Jane Griffiths, Director Commissioning 
Tel No: 01242 264126 
Email: jane.griffiths@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Annex
Page 79



Page 80
This page is intentionally left blank



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�������	�
���
�����	����	�������		���
�

��
�	����	���������������
����
����	�����
����

��������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

 �
�����!�
�"��
�������������#������
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

Page 81



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

��

$%���	����&����
#�
�

'�	
����	����

������������	��������������������	���������������������
�������������  ������!�
��"�
	�� ������#������������� �$����%���������&�����#����'���������������&�(�������	�
'����'��������������������������������������������������)�*�����������+������������������
��������	������������	���������)������������������������	��������������������������� �������
	��������
������������������� �+�����������&���������%��������%��������������
���%����������������&�#������������������	����������+���������������������������)�

�

(�	�������!�
����	���
)����

,���� ���� ����� �#�� �������&� ���� ������ �	�#����� ����������� ������������ !��������� ��������"�
����� ���� �� ���� �� ����� ���� ��������������� ��� ���� ������ �	� ������� ��������� ���
#����� ��������� ���������� ���� ����-�����)� ������ ���� ����� ����� %��#��%� ��������� ���
������%��������������������������������������������	���	�� ������ �����	������)�
�
���� �
��� ��� �� ����� #���� ����%����� ��#���� ���  �+�� ���������� ���������%� ����
��������%&�#�����������������������������������%���������� 	��� ������������������������%��
������������������������#���������� �����������������	�������������)�

�

*�������"����	�+�

•� .���� ��������� ��� ����	�����������&�#������	������������������	������%��
���#�����������������������������������������/�

•� 0�������%��������� ���������������� ���������	�������#������������������	�����
�������������������/���

•� 1������+�������������������������� �������������������� ���������	����#��%�����
#������������������&�#��������������������		�������&�������%� �������������������
������� �������������������������������)�

•� *�����	������������������������������������������� ��%����������������������

�

&��
	����������	�
��

�����������+��#���%������������ �2���	�������������	�����	�2�����#��+��%�#�����������������
���%������ ������������������������� �+����������� �����	�������#�����������������%�
�����	������������ ������%��	�����������%����#����������&������������������� ����	� �2���
����%�)�

(���	��������,�	��	������	�-������������	��-��������	�&	
�	��#�.-�-&/�����
�	��
�������	����"�	��
�	�����
�
����	�� �������	������
��������������#��������
3�3.�!�����������������������������
������������ �������������#����������������������2���������
���������������")������
��������������#���&���#����&�����������������������������	�
3�3.���2���������������	����
�
��������������)�

Page 82



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

��

�
1���������
3�3.&��������0� � �������������������������������������������������
����+���#����� ���%� ��������������������������#�����������+������ ��� �����%�����
������%�)���
�
�������������������������#��������������������������������������#����������������
������������������������	��������
���0����������������������#������������������
3�3.�
����%����������������������	��������������������������&�.������'��������������������
��#+�������$����%���������)�

�

���	����	��-��������	�0��	�

�����
���#�������������������
�����������3���%� ����1����+��#���������
�����������
��� �!
��"�#�������������������������������	�&�����&���������!#�����������������������
�
��"&� ������&���-�������������� ��������������������	�������������������������&�
����������������� �����	�������������������������-��������� �)�
�

�����	��
���������

������
�����������������4��������������� ������������������� �������������������5��
	����������������%���������������������� ����������������#�����������������%��� �����	�
�����������!�"����������)�
�
*���������������������������� �����	����%����!#���������������%�� �2�����"�#����������������
����������������������������������� ���%����������
��)�
�
�

"�	�����

�	����������������������	���%��������������		������������ ��������������������������
���������������0���)��
�
��������������������������������%��������������%6�7�%�%��%�#��������� ���&�
������� ���&���	�����������&���������������� ���&��������������������������
�������������������������������������)�
�
3�����	������������������		����������������������������	�������������&����������%��������	��
��#������������������������������%�)�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

Page 83



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

8�

�

�1� '�	
����	����

�1�1� ���)�
�����	�����	�2��������-�)����

� 9����������������������� �������������&����������%������%���	���#����������4�����%���
���%���� �����	����������������������������������������������#�������%���	�
������������������������������	��)�
�
3�2���������������%�����%�����������%����������%������	�� �#��+��	��������������
��������������+������	
�����
���� �����%�)��:�#����������������������	��������
�		��������&�������#�����#�����������������������	�� ���������%������#�����������������
 �+��%/�������������������������������  ������)�������������������� ���%������
#��+���������������������#������������������  �������#����������������������������
��������� �������������������	���� �+��%����������)�
�
�
�������  ����������#���#����� �����������������������������%������#��������
��������� �+��%�!#����������%�����	�� �#��+��������������%���������������"������
���%������������ �+��%������#�������������������	�������������������	�� �����%���)�

�1�1� ���	���
)��������2��������-�)�������(��#�������������	��

� �������������������������	����	�� �2�����#��+��%������������%�����#����� ���%� ����
����#���������������&����������%������������������#���������&������������	�#�����
�����������������������!�����������������"���������� �� ������ ���������
�����������������������������	��������������������#��������������������������������-
�����)���������������������%��#��%�������������������%��������������������������
����������)�

�1�1� ��
��	�����!�	����������	�
���
�����	����	�������		���.���/�

� �
������������	���������	�� ���������.������������	�����9����������� �������
�;<���������������������%&�#�����������������������������������%����������	���������
������������������%��������������������������#���������� �����������������	�������
������)�
�
������������������ �����������	����#��%������������6�
�

•� ��������� �$����%����������!�$�"/�

•� ����#����'����������������!�'�"/�

•� (�������	�'����'����������������!(�''�"/��

•� �������������������������������!���")�

�
�����%�����	�� �#��+�	��������
���������*��������������%��� ����!*"���%����
���3����������#�����������	������������������ ������������������%�����������
��#�������������������#������������������������������������������������%��������
�
��)�����*�����������������������������������	������#��������������������
%�������)�

�
�

Page 84



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

=�

�

� �����
����� ��������	��#��3� �����	�� ���������������������>����3� ���&�����
����5������)������
���#���� ����	�� ����������������������������4���������������#����
��	�� ��� �����%�&�#��+�������������������+��%������������4���������#����	�� ���
 �����%�)������� ����������������� ���#���������������������	����� �����%�����
���������������	�����������3)�3� ���������	������
��������������������������
����	�������������������
���%�����������������	�����#����������������������)�
�
�����
�������������
�����������3���%� ����1����!
�31"�!.��������"&�+��#�����
����
�������������� �!
��"����������:�����	�.�������#���������������������������

�������  �������������&��������&�	���������������#��������%������������������
�
��)�����:�����	�.������� ���������������������%����������������������+��#��������
0�����������������������%������������-������.�����%���3���%� ����������!.3�")�
�����
������>������5����������������������������������������%����� ���������%�
��������)������������	������ ���������%��������������.3���������������������*)�

�131� ��
������!�	������������������

� ��������������������������4���� ��������������*��������������%��� ������������#��
�����������������%�������+��������������������������	�����������������������)�
*������������������� ��������������������������������� �������������%&��������
�������������������������������	��������������������������?�8)�
�
����������������������	��������������������������� �������	��������
���������������
���� �+�����������&���������%��������%�����������������%����������������&�#�������
�����������	����������+���������������������������)�

�
�

�1� *����������	�
���
�����	����	�������		���

�1�1� ��
������!�	�������

� �����
���#���6�
�

•� 0������������������������� �+��%���������� ���������������������������
�����%��	�� �������������������

�
•� (����������#���������� �����+��%��������	�����4��������	���������� �+��%�	�� �
����� ��&�	�����������������������		����������������	����#)�

�

�1�1�  �������!�	�������

� ����	����#��%��������#����%�����	����������������������
��������6�
�
��������������������
�������������
�����������������������������������������������
��� �������� ����� ��������� ������ ���������� ��� ���������� ������ ���������� ���
����������������������������������������������
���������������������
��������������
������������������������������� �����������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������
��������� ��������������� ����� ����� ��� ���� ������������� !�������� ��� ���� ��
���
��
����� �� �� ��� ��
���� ���� ������ ������ ����� �� ������
���� ����� ��
���� ����

Page 85



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

@�

���������� ����� ���� �� �� ����� ����� ��� ����������� ��� ��� ��� ���� ������"��
��������������
�����������������
�
���������������������
�������������#���������$�����������
������������������
������� �� ����� �����$��������%��� &� $%'������������ ��� ����������� ��������
���������� ��������� ����� ���� ��� ��(
����� ���� ���� ����� ��������� ��������� ��� ����
)
������ *��� ��������� �
����� ��� ���� �����  ����� ����������� ���� � $%� �����
��������������������������������������#�������+�����,������������������+�����
,
�������� ����� ������� ��� !������ #�������� -�������� ��������� ���������� ���
����������������������
�������������������������������������������������������
��������������
�
#����
���������� ����
�� �������� �����
��� ����� ����!������������ ������
��� ������
�������.�������������������
����������������������������������
�
/��������
������������������������������ ������ ����������� ������������� ����
� $%�&��� ������
��������������� ������������������ �����'� ��� �������� ���
��� �� ����
���������������
�
,����
��� ��������� �������������� ����
�� ��� ������ ������� ������
���� ����������� ���
������������� �� ������ �������������� ���� ����� ��� ��������� ��������� ���������
�������������������������������������������0�������������0������������������
�
)������������������������������������������
�����
�������������������������
���������������
��
����������������������������������
�������
��������������
�����
�
������������������������������������������������������������������ $%��
�
���������������%���� �������/�����
�������  ������#����������������#��+�#���������������
��������������� ���	� ���%� �����	�������������������������������	�����������)��

�
�

�1�1� 4�#��
���������(���
������������������	
�������&�
������
���������

� �����������������	�����������2�����#��+��%�#�������������%���������� ������������������
� �������������������5��	����������������%����������������������!	������ ���6�
	��4�������	����������������A�������%��������������%������"� ����������������#����
�������������%��� �����	������������!�"����������)�,��������%���������������������
������������������<)������#)�

�131� �
��������"�����!�����

� •� �������� ��������� ��� ����	�����������&�#������	������������������	������%��
���#�����������������������������������������/�

•� �����������%��������� ����������/������ ���������	�������#�����������������
�	������������������������/���

•� ����������+�������������������������� �������������������� ���������
	����#��%�����#������������������&�#��������������������		�������&�������%�
 �������������������������� �������������������������������)�

•� ���������	������������������������������������������� ��%�����������

Page 86



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

<�

�����������

�
�

�1� *������	����	��*����.�*/�.!�
����#�)��,�����	����-0/�

�1�1� � ��#�������������	����	��*���5�

� ����
���������������������		���������������������
��)�������������%������:����
�	�.������������
�����������%����	������������������%������'���������������?����
��� )������������%����	�������������6�
�

•� ����:�����	�.�����������
������������������#��	�������������������#�����
��������%����� �����������������������
�����������#���� ����������������
������������� �)���

•� ��������������	������%����������� ���%� ������� �������������������������
�����������������������������������������������%�/�

•� ��-������������������� �+��%����#����������������������������������������
%�������������������� ������������������ ��/�

•� �������� ���%� ������� �#���������������������������� �����		��������
#����2�������	�����������%������	������������&�������%�������� ���������������
����������������������������������5���������������������� ��)������#�����������
������������������� �+��	���������%�������#�������%������������%�
���	�� ������������������������������������������������	������ ��������
��������)�

�1�1� ���	�	������	����	��*����,�������

� ��������������������	�����
�������������� ���&�����������������%����	������
��&����
�����	�&�����&��������&� ������&���-�������������� ��������������������	�������������
������������&������������������ �����	����������������������������������� �)��
������������������������������#����������)�)��
�
����
����������������%�����������	�����������#��������������#��	6�
�

•� ����� ���������!����������������� �&����%���� ������������"��

•� �������������5��#������������&��������������������%���

•� ��������������	����������������������������������� ������

•� #���������������%������������ ����������������-#�������������

�
��������������	����	�����%�����������2���������#�����������������#������ ��������
����������������������������������������� ��������%� ���%��������#������������
 �����		������������		�������#��)��*�����������������	�������&�����������%�%���������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������2������������������������������������ �����������������)�

�1�1� &�
�������
�������

Page 87



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

B�

�1�1�1� ����0���������������������������%��������������������	�������	����#��%���������
��������������
��6�
�

•� :������������������#����&�������������%�������%����������������/�

•� 9�����������������������������������	��&������ ����������������/�

•� $���%������/�

•� :���������A�������%���������!:A��"/�

•� 3��������������!����0�������"��������������!�'�-����"�#��������������������
��������/�

•� $��+������������#���������������/�

•� ��  �������#����������������!#������		����"/��

•� .��������������%/��

•� (���������%��������������������������������/�

•� �������������������������%�0A&� ��+����%�������  ��������%�%� ����
!��������%�#�����������")�

�1�1�1� ����������-	����%����������!��������%����������	����	� ���������	�� ��������������
�����������������������������������"����������������������%��������������������
��������$�		�&�����&�3��������������1����)�����������	�����
�����������6��
�

•� '��������%�����������%�����C��%��������D������������%������������%�&�
����������&������ �����������������	�� �������������%��������������� ��%�
���%������������
��5����2�������)�

•� 7������%��������������������������������������������	������������������#����
�����	���������������������������������������������������������%��)�

•� A����������%���������� ���5������������������������	�� ������������ �
�����%�������������������������� ����)�

•� A����������%�������������5��������������	���������������������������
���
���������%����������������������������������� �����%�)�

•� 7������%���������	��������������� �������������������#����������#���������� �
��������������������� ����������������#������������������� ����������������
���������������)�

•� 0������%�	���	������������� �����	��������������������� ���)�

�131� 6�,�	����*�����	
��	�
���

�131�� ����
���������		���������	����������#����������������������������%������
������������	������������������������)�.��		�#���#�������������������#��+��%�	�������
� ���������%����������#������������	�������������107�A�%���������������������
����)������������%���� ���������������������������������������	���#��������
������������������#��������������������%�����)��

�131�� �����
����������������������������������		��������:�����	�.�����������������
�� �������&����������������%���������� ����?���������	�����������������%� ����#����

Page 88



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

;�

����.� ������������0�����������!.�0")�����������%� ��������%��#���������������
����	������������#��������������������������������������������������2����������+���
��  ������������)�

�131�� ����
���#���������������������������������������#���������������%�������		�����#���
#������������� ������������������	���������������������������)�7���� � �����	�����
��� �#����������������������� ����������%��&������-������%��������������������#�����
������������#�������#�����	���	�� �����#�������%���	��+��������������������
���������)���

�1313� *����������	���������������������		�#����������
���#��������������������
������������%��	�����#���������� �������������		�����%�������	�������������������
2�����������������������)�������#����������������+��� ����%����������������������#����
����������������������#�����������������������������������		���������������%���������	�
�	�����%���������������������� ����������������������������		���������	�����)�

�1317� ����:�����	�.�������#�����������+���������#��	�#��+��������������������������
�������	�������������	�����	�����	�#� �������	����������&�������������������.�����%���
3���%� ������� ��������	�����%��!������<)@")������� ��	���������������������
����� �����	��������������������	�������������
���������������������������������
����������������	�������������%����������������������������������������������
�����������������)��

�171� 6�,�	����*�,����������
�	����89��	����1�

�171�1� :����%������������������
�����������
��&�����������������#������������������������
������� ��� � �����	��������%������������� �����	������)��
�
����%�������������������������������������5�+����� ������������������+���
 � ������	�����%�)�1�����������%������������������������������������%�������
����%����������������������&����	�� ����������		���������� �����������������	�
������������	����?��	����������������#��)��
�
,���������������	��������	�������������������������B�#����(�������	�'���5����������
���������������������������)�,������#�����������	���#+�������$�&�.������'�����?���
����������������2�������������������)�.������'�5����������������������������	���
����#���������@)��

�171�1� �����������#�����������	��� �����		�������2���������#��+��%�������������� �������/�
	������ ����������������� �������������#�����������������������������1�����	���
�'�������$�)������������0����!���������"�������������� �����	�������#�����
��������� ����%������������ ���)�

�171�1� *���������%������ &���������������������	�������������%�������������� ����� ����
�������6��

•� ,��� ���������	�#�����������&������	��������������������� ����	�������������
������� ���������������	���������������%�������������#���� ��	����������������
���������������������������������������%��������������������/��

•� A�-���	�%���������	�	��������������#��#��������������+���	�����#���������	���
�������������������+-������������ ������)�������������������� ���������������
��������������������������� ��� �������������������������	�����������5�

Page 89



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

���

#��+��%��� �/�

•� (����������%��������������������%��� �������������� ���&��� �������������
��������������������	�������%������������� �����������������������������
��4���� ����/�

•� .�%��	�����������%��������	�� ������������������������#����������%������%���
%��%�������������&�	������ �������.� �������� ��������������� ���������
������������������� ������������������������������������#������		������
������)�

•� � �%�������������� ����#���������� ����������%���������������%��#��������%�
����	������������������'�����������������!�'"����������������������
���������!��"�	��������6�

§� 9��%�������� ����������������������%������������� ��+����������������
��������������/�

§�  ���������������#���������� �������� ���	�������������������������
 ���%� ���/�

§� .���� ����������� ���������������%���������������������	���
���� �������������	��������/�����

§� A��������������	���  ��������������������������������%���� ���	����
 ����%���������  �����2�������)�

�
�

31� *���:��
�	����$���
�����	�

31�1� ���������� ��������%���������������� �����������������������������������������
���������	�����
��&�
������������������)��A�������%�����#����� ���%� ���������
���������&��� ���-������������#��������%��������������	�	������������������
���������������������4���� ����)������������#������� ���������������������������
�������#����������%����������� ����	� ������������������)����������������������
���������	����������� ���������� ����		��������������������������&�%����� ����
�����������������������	�����������������������������������������������������%�����	�
�������������������������%����� ��)�

31�1� �����������#��������%�����	���������������������#���������������	�������#����� �����
�������������)����������#�����������	�������������������� �%������������ ��������
��������������������	�����)���������������������� ����������������������������������
����������������������%�������������������������������	����#��%6-�

31�1� ����	�����;�$��������
�

•� ,�%���%��������%����������������������� �����������%�����	����)��

•� *��������%�	����������)�

•� *��������%���������������������������	�������#���������%�����������	�� �
#���������� �)�

•� ���������� ��������������%����������� �2�������%������������������#������
����������&���#���������	����#��%� ������������ ����6-�

§� 
��%� ���������
��������A����#���%�����%�����1E5������������������	�

Page 90



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

���

����������(�� �#��+�'������������B�#��� �������3�������������
	�������	�'�	��&�������	������)�:������������������������&���� �%���
������������������- ��%�����������������	����������)�:�#���������
���������+����������������������1����1��������!�AA"�#���
���������	��)��*���������������!������3���������"��	��AA�#����������)�

§� ����� ������	�����%����	���	���������������%�	�� ����������������	�71�
��#��������1E6�(������ ����������	���������	�C�����	�#����D�!����������
���#����&��	�������������%&�#���������������%�������	�������#���������
���� �������#� �������"�������#������ �%���� ��������#���� ������
������	���������������%����������������)��

§� ����.����������	�.�����	���9����������� �����������������������������
��������������������5������������	�������#��+���������������	������
�������������A����.������������&�������%������������������������
��������)��

3131� *�������������������	������	�����
����
�������#�

� •� �����������������������#��������������������	���������������������#���������
7������ ������9��)�����������������	����������%��	�� �#�����	�����������

�������0��+&�������������1�������$��	����$������������������������#�����#���
��	��������������������������������������5��0������%���  ������������
3���������)��������������#���������������1$$������������������������	���
����������������.���������	���.��������
��������)�����
�������������  ������
#����������������������	�������������� ����������������%���������
�����4����� �����%�������4�����)���������2������������������������������
�����	��������#�����������
����� ��)��

�
•� ������#���������������������������������%����%�������%��������������
������� �����	��� ���	����������������������������+����� ��������
����
��������������	������������4��������	�������������������?������+�%��%��������
�����	�������	�)������ ��� ���� ���� �����	��#�����+����	���������������������
����� ����&�����������&�������������������?����������������-���+����� ����
������������������%������ �� �+��%�������������	��������������� ����
����������	��������������������)�

�
•� �������������%����������	�� ����������	�������%����4��������	� ��������
������������������������������)�����2�������������#� ������������8)�����������
����������	������������	�� ����������������������%�������������������#����
�����������������������������%���%��4�������#���������� �)�

�
•� * ����� ���������������������	� ���������������������������������%�����
�������������������)�

3171� &�����������	��

� •� ,���������� ��%����������������%���%���	����������������#����������������
���������������������������������������������������
���#�������������������
���������������&���������%�������������� �������#�������������  ����������
�������	�����%���%�����������)�

Page 91



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

���

•� �����%��%�����������&��������%��������������������������������#��������������
��%������������������%����������#������������� ������������������� ������&�
��������������	���������������		������������%��������	��������������������������
������������������������#�	���������������������� ��� ����)��������������%��
 ������� ���%����������%�������%���#������%�#�������������������������
��	�������������������	��������%�%�������)��

•� *��������%��������������	�� ��� �������������������������#��������������	�
 ��������)���������%�������� ����������������?���4�������� ��������������
���������������� �����������������)�

•� �%��#��%���������	����������������	���#�� ���������%� ����������#���
�����������������������������������������)��7������%� �������������������������
��������� ���������������%����������%��%)��

•� *��������%�������������������9��#�������������������������������� ��
��������������-�������������������������	��������%���������������
��������������	�#����)�

31�1� $���
�����	��������	�������������%	
����,��	��
�

•� *��������%��������������������%��������������������� ��� ������������ ������
	�� ��������������������� ��������	�� �������������� �����������������%�

•� �������������������� ����������������������� ���	�#��������������� ��������
����������	������������%�������������

•� *�������������������	�������������������������������������������4��������	�
����� ��#������#�������!���#&�	������%����")�������������� ���%��������
����������������%&�������������������������%�����������-�������������	�
��������������������������������������)��

�
�

71� ���	�-������������	��-��������	�&	
�	��#�.-�-&/�

71�1� -�-&�����	���(���	��������,�	������

� *�����B�������������������������������������������������������������������������
0�����������!��0"�
�����3���������������3���%� ����.�����%��!
3�3."�#�����
������������������������������� ���	��� ���%��%�#�����������������������������)�
�
���� ������2���������	�����
3�3.�����������������������������	����	������
����������&�	������%����#�����������������������������&���������%������� ������%�
 ���&������������%������� �����%�#���������� ����������������#��)�����������%��
��������������2����������C�����������������������������������������������
���
�������������
�������������������������������������������
��������������������
��������������
��������������������������������������������������������������2��
�
����	�� �������	������
�����������	������������#��������
3�3.�!��������������	�����
��0������������&������������������������&�.������'����������������������#+�������
$����%���������&����������������������2���������
���������������)���������������
�����#���&���#����&�����������������������������	�
3�3.���2���������������������������
���������)�
�

Page 92



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

���

1���������
3�3.&��������0� � ���������������������������������������������
��������+���#����� ���%� ��������������������������#�����������+������ ��� �����%�
����������%�)���
�
�������������������������#��������������������������������������#����������������
������������������������	��������
���0����������������������#������������������

3�3.�����%����������������������	��������������������������&�.������'��������
��������������#+�������$����%���������)�

�

71�1� -�-&�:89��	���������*�
��	��

� .�������=)������=)���	�����
3�3.����������������2��������������������������%����
�%��������������06�

:89��	�����+�<�����������������
=�

���	�������������������������������%�&���  �����������������������������
���%��  ��������� ����#����� ��� ��������������� ��� ���������������������
������������#����� ���%� ������������)�*���������%���� �#���� ���������	�� �
����� ������������������������5������������������� ������������������)�
�
���%���!��"�-�$������6��
�

•� ���������������%����������������������	�B�F������������%�G��� ������%�
��������������� ��/�

•� ���������������%����������������	�B�F�	������%��������������������
�� ��������� ��������)�

�

:89��	�����+�<(����	������
�	=�

�������������������������5�� ���������#�����������������%�#�����%�����������������
��������������������	��������������������������)�
�
���%���!��"6�
�

•� ��������������%��#����	����������������5�� ���������#�����������%�����H�������
����)�

�

:89��	�����+�<&��
���	�����	�&��
��=�

��������������������������� ������������������������������������%��%����������#����&�
��������%����� ��������������������� ��#���������������� ������������4�����������
�������	����� �������������������	�����������%������� ������%)�
�
�
:89��	����3+�<������	�6��
�
��#=�

������ ������ ��������  �������� ������%�#�������������&������������������
	��������������� ��������#������������������������������+������������������������:A��)�
����� ��������������%��4��������� ������������������������������)�
�

Page 93



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

�8�

���%���!��"6�
�

3��� � �������-#����� ����� �������%���������������������	����#�6�

>��
� (��#������?�������	����
*�
��	�

(��������,��	����
�
����	��	�
��	�

���8?�=� =�F� �<�+%�
���;?��� @�F� ��B+%�
&+�������-�3�������4'�

*���������������������������%������������������������������������������������������
��������%������� ������%�������	�<�F���������������%���������������������%��������
������0������	�� ������%��)�

� �

:89��	����7+�<(�����������	�������(����
��=�

��������������������#���������� �����������������������#�����	�� �����	���&�����	�������
�������� ��+����	������������� ��������)�,������	����������� ��������������#����
���� ��������������	�����������������%����	�������������	�� ����������#�������	����
��������)�
���%���!�8"6�A����������� ������	�������������%��������#�����	�� �����	�������������
��������#����������4���� ������	�����9���	�������#�����������%�.��� ����6�

� ����;��� ����;�3� ���3;�7� ���7;��� ����;�@� ���@;�A� ���A;�B� ���B;���

������� <�&===� @B&8B@� @=&8�@� @�&�8<� =;&�<<� =@&��B� =�&��;� =�&�@;�

&+�������-�3�������4�����5'�

�

:89��	�����+�<2�����
����	���&	
�	��#=�

���� ��� ���������.�����%�������%������������������&���������������������- �+��%&�
�� ���������� �����������������%)����#�������+�����������������������	�����%����
�������������� ���������������������5��#����� ���%� �����������)�
�

:89��	����@+�<��
)���������
	��
����=�

���������������		����������������������#������������������������������������������
�����������%��������	�� �������	��������������%������������	�� �#��+&���������%�
	����������������������������������&�	������������%������.�����%�)��������������������
�����%��������������#��������������0������%���������&�����������&���  ������
%������������������%����������������������		������� ���%� �����	����� ���������
#���������� )�
�

:89��	����A+�<��������	���(����
���C���=�

�������������#����� ��������������� ������������������������/���������%���������
������������������������������������������%��������������#���������������������)�
:�#�������������+��#���%�������� ��+�������������������������������������������	���
	�� ������ �����	������)�.�������������������%����������	��� ���� �������������	����
���������������������� ��)�����#���&���#����&����+��������������������#�����
 �����������������������������%��4���������������&�������%����%��������2���&��������
#�����&����� ���%��������� ������	���� ��������%�)�

Page 94



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

�=�

�

:89��	����B+�<2������	�����!�	������	��&	
���=�

����������%�����������������	���H�������#�����������%�&����������%��%��������
��	����������������������	���H������� ���������	�� ����� ���������#���������� )�

71�1� *�
��	��

� �������������������#���������+������	�� ������������������������������%����	�������
��������������������)�
�������6��

D�(��#������
?�������	����
��

��������I���� ����?�8� ���8?�=�

���%��� (�������� ��������� �
�������	�
��	�
�
�������
	�
��	�

��������� � 8�� 8=� J�� 3�� 3��
����#���� =�� =;� J<� ��� ���
(�������	�'���� 8�� 8;� J@� 3A� 3B�
����������� =�� �;� -��� 7�� 7��
.������ 8�� �;� -��� ��� 3��
��#+������� 8�� =8� J��� 73� 73�
:A��� @=� @<� J�� �A� @��
������������� 8;)�� 8B)<� -�)�� 7�17� 7�1��

�
�������6�
4��
��������
,��	����
�
����������
��

��������I���� ����?�8� ���8?�=�

���%��� (�������� ��������� �
�������	�
��	�
�
�������
	�
��	�

��������� � =B8� 8<<� -��<� 3�7� 3�3�
����#���� 8=�� �B�� -<�� ��7� �73�
(�������	�'���� @8�� 8�;� -���� 3�7� 3���
����������� 8@�� 8;�� J��� �B@� �B��
.������ 8<�� =�=� J�=� 3AA� 3���
��#+������� =<�� �B;� -�B�� �A3� �A��
:A��� B=� =@� -��� 7�� 7��
������������� @��� =�@� -��8� 3@�� 37@�

�
�

�
�

�1� �
��
�	����

�1�1� ���������������%��������������������������������������������H��)����� ����
� �������������������%��������������%���������
�0���������
���	�������	��������
 �����)�������������#��������������	����������#��������+�������������������)�*K�
��  �������������������������  ����������	����#�6-�
���

•� ����;�3�L��������� �����	�����������������!�����
�����������
��"&�
	� �������������#��������%���������������%� ����&�������	���������	���������� �

Page 95



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

�@�

�����%���������%������ ���������������!����@)������#")�0�������	���
��#+�������$����%�������������2��������
�������  ������	�� �������������8)�

•� ���3��@�L�����������	���������� ������%�������		��������������������%�
�����������������%� ����)�7������%��.�����������������������������2��������
������������������������	���	������2������������ �����������������&���+��%������
��������������������������	������� �������������������������)�*������%����
���������������������������-�������3��������A��������(��������!3A("�����
���������'�%�������!'"���	�����������)��

•� ���@��AE�L��������������� �����		�������2���������������������%� ��������&��	�
��4�����&�����������	���	������������������	���)�

�1�1� �
��
�	����!�
�����;�3+�

� •� $�����������������%��������	��������������
�����������)�

•� $�����������������%��	���#�����%������������������%���������������
�����%� �����#��+�	��������
���������������)��

•� 3���%������%�����������������	�������������������&�����#��������������
�������������������C4���+�#��D������%�)�

•� 7����������������		������������	����	�#��+��������+������� ���������������
�����������������#������ �������� �������������������������������������
�������!����������������������#��������2�����������0����������������"�

•� :�%���%�����������	�����	�2�����#��+��%�����������%����������������������������
'������������2�����������������������������������������������)�

�
�

@1� *��������	�
#��
���,�
)�

@1�1� ����$��%������(�� �#��+������������#����������*&������	�������.���������8�����=)��
�
*��	����������������  �����	��������%���#�����������#�����������������������)�(���
����?�8����%�����  ���&��������
�!�
�	��&��������3��!�	���'"")��
�
���� ����������������������	����#�6�
�

•� �������������������4��������������� ������������������� �������������������5��
	����������������%���������������������� ����������������#����������������
�%��� �����	������������!�"�����������!��������������)�������")�

•� �������������������������� ��+������������	�M�B�E�#�����#����������:����
�	�.����������������������������	������������������	����������&�������	����������
������#�������	���������������������������%�������%�)��

•� ����������&����������������������������������������������	������	������
� ��������#���������������������������	�����%�����������#���#������� ������
����� ���������%������������������%��)�

•� ������������ �����������������%���%���������������������������#��������
��������#������������������� ��������������������������%����������������
�������������	�����
��)�

Page 96



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

�<�

•� *��� ��#��������������������������������������������	���%������#���������#����
�������������������������		���������������������)��

•� ������#����������������������2��������������	������#��������������������������
�����������������������#�����%�����	�� ����������������.��������=��������
*)�������#��������������	�������������������������������'��	��$��%���
���� ������%�����$��������0���)�

A1� 4�#�"�	�����

� .�������������0�����������������	���+���������������������  ��������%�%� ����
�������)�����������0����������	��������		�����������������	�����������������	������
��� ����������2�������������	������ �������������������������� ��)��
�
��������������������������������	����#��%�����%�����6��
�

•� ��%�%��%�#��������� �����
•� ������� ����
•� ��	������������
•� ��������������� ����
•� ���������������������
•� ��������������������������������������
•� ���������2�����
�

3�����	������������������		����������������������������	�������������)�

�
�

B1� *�
��	������
���
	����

� �������������������������������%��������������������������������������	��#�����������
	�����������	�����������#���������
���������%����%����	������8?�=���#����)��
�

0��	�� �����#������������������������
�������������#������������6���	���������
��  �����	��������������	�����������������������  ��� �����%&����������	������
��  �����	�������������	���������������������#������ �����%)�

�
�
�

��1� ����-��	�����

��1�1� *������������������� �����
��� �����%���������������������	����#��%� �������#����
����	����#��%��
���������	������ �����������������!��	�� ���(��#����0����#�������
+���������������")�����������	������3�#������������ ����������������%�����
 �����%)�
�
���
����������!*���%����� �����%"�

•� 7���������� ����������������� ���
•� %�������� ���	�����%���������:�����	�.��������
•� (�� ����������������������
•� ����?���0��	�� �����A������

Page 97



��������	���
��������������
��������� � �
���������� �
� �

�B�

•� 1���������+���������������������� �����
•� �������0�������������0�����0��������

�
.����������

•� A����#��	����������������%���
•� .�  �����	��������������������	��������������������	��������%��
•� '��	��$��������0�������8-�;�
•� '��	��$��%������8-�;�
•� 1�������������������	����- � ��������������

�
'��������

•� �������'��	��$��%���	������8?�=�
•� �������'��	��$��������0�������8-�;�
•� 0��	�� ������������	���N�G�������?�8�
•� A����#��	����%�����#�����������������)�

�
(������8�

•� �������$��%���	������8?�=�
•� �������$��������0�������8-�;�
�

��������8��
•� N���������$�������� �����%�

�
*������������������������������&�����$����� ������������������������&�������������
����  ����������#������������4��������?�������#����������	�� �#��+��	�����
$��������0���)�

��1�1� *����������������������������������������	�����	�� ���!������������� �+��%"� �����%��
�	������
��������������������
�6�
�

•� ��#�!������������	������������������������� ����&������%����������������
�������������%����C��#� � ���D�����	��%�	����#��%���������%����	��
���
 � ���������	�������������3�)�

•� :�	�8�
�!���������������%������������&������%���������������")�
•� F����8�
�!�����������������������	��������������������#����������������
��4�������	��������,���������	�� ��� �����%")�

�
�

��1� (��)�(����	�
�

� ���������������+���%��������������������������������������$)�

�

��1� C��	��!�"����������

� ����������L�������0����
����������L�A��+�A�%�������
���������$�L�A��+�A�%������3������

�

Page 98



�
�
�
��
�
��
�	
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��

�
���
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
 
� 
��

��
��
!
��
"
��
�
��

�
��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��
�	

�
�
��
��
��
��


��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
	

�
�
��
�

�
��
��

��

��



�
��
��

�
�

�
��
��
��

�
	�
��
��
��

�
��
�
	

�
�

�	
��
�	

 
��
�	

��
!

�
�"
�
�

�
��
�	

�
	�
��
���


#

�
	�
$�
��
�

��
��
��
��



�
�

#

�
%

&�
'
�
��
(

)
��
	�
�	
�

�	
�$
��
�
�

�	
�*
��
�
�
�	

��
�

+
�,
"


-
�
�

,
��
��
�	
��
�
�

�

��
 

�
��
���
��
��
��


��
	�
��

�
��
��
�	
��

�
*


	.
�	
��

 
��
�	

+
�,

�
	�
�

�$

�
��

�
�

/
��
�	
�

��
��
��
��
��
��


�

�
	�
$�
��
�

�	
��
��
	�

�
�

�
	�
��
	�

 
��
�	

��



��
�
*��
�

��
�

�
�	
��

�
��
��
	�
��


�*

�
	�
�
�	
��

��

�
	�
��
	
��

�
��
��

��
�


��
��
��
	

 
��
�	

�
��
��
�	
�

�
�

&�
'
��

0
�
��
��
�	
�
	
�
�
�

�	
�$
��
	

�
��
	

�
�

�	
��
�	

 
��
�	

��

��
�
*��
�

��
1

+
�,

2
	 

�
	�
��
	
�
�
*
��
�
��
��


*�$
	�
�

�
3�
4
�

&�
�'�
�

/
��
�	
�

��
��
��
��
��
��


�

�
	�
$�
��
�

�	
��
��
	�

�
�

�
	�
��
	�

 
��
�	

��



��
�
*��
�

��
5

+
�,

�

��
�
�
��
	
��
�

�
�

-
��
�	


�
��
�	

6
-
�
7

��
�	
�
	


��
��
��
��



�
�
��
3�
4
�

+
	�
'&
�



�
�
��
�$

�
��
��
�
�
	�
��
	
��

��

�
�	
�	
�

�
��
�	
��
�$

�


���
��

�
�$

#

�
��
	�
�	



��
��
��
��
��
��


�

��
	

-
�

�
��
	�
	

*�
�

��
��


	�
��
��
��$

��
8

�
��

3�
�	

+
��
�

/
��
	

�
��
�	

�
 
��
	
	�
�

��
�
��
��
�

�
�

�
��
'�
��

4
��
�	

�
 
��
	
	�
�

�*

��
��
��

�
*
�
��
�	
��
��
	�

�
	�
��
��
��
�

��
9

-
�
�
"


�
�	
��

+
��
�

�
��
�
�

��
�	
�
	

�

/
��
�	
��	
$

��
	�

�
*


�
�	
��	
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
��
'�
�

,
	*
��

*�
�
	�

��
��
�
�
*
*
��
�

��
�
��

�
��
:	
��

��

1
1;
;

��
��
	�
��
��

��



�	
��

�
*�
��

*�
��
�	

�
��
	
���
�
�
*
�
	 
��
�

��
�	
�
	�

�

��
<

�
�"
�
�

�
��
�
��
	

��
��
	

 
��
�	

�
��
	�
	

�
�

#

�
%

�
��

'

&
��

)
��
	�
�	
�

��
=	
'�
�

�

�
	�
��
�	

��
�;

+
�,

�
��
��
�	

�
��
��
	

��

�
��
���
$

��
��
�





4
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
��

�
	�
�	
�

�
*�
��
	�

�


 
��
�	

�
�
��
��
��
��
>

�
	�
$�
��
�

�
�


�	
��
��
�

 
��
�	

��

��
�
*��
�

��
��

+
�,

�
��
��
�	

�
��
��
	

��

�
��
�
	�
�

��
�
�
�
��$

�
��

%
��
�
	�
�


4
��
	�

%
��
=�
	�



4
�

�
��

�
�

#



�
��
�
�

�
�

	
��
�	

��
��


�

��
��
	

 
��
�	

��

�
��
�

�

��

�
��
	�
���

 
��
�	



��
�	
��

��
�!

+
�,

?
��
��
	

�
'��
	

�
*�
��
��
��


��
��
�
	
�

�
	�
��
��
��


�*



�	
�$
��
��
	


�
3

�
��
�
�

)�
��
��
	

��
�
��
��
	
�$

�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
��
�

�
*
�
	�
��
�	
�

��
��
��
	�



�
�

 
�	
�	

�
��
	�
��
�
�
�	
��

Page 99



�
�
��
��

�
��
�

#
"
��

�
�
��

�
�

��
��

-
�
�

?
��
��
	

�
�

�	
��
���

��
	

4
	�
$�
�	

*�
�

-
��
��
	�
�	
��
��
�	



�
	�
��
�	

 
���

��
��
��
	�

�
�	
�*
��
	

*�
�

��
��
�
�
��
	



��
	�
�


�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
�
�
	�
��
���
�
>
�
�
��
��
	�

�
��
	�
��
��
���
$

�
�

��
�
��
��
�
	

 
���



��
��
��

�
��
�
��
��
>
�
��
��

�
��
���
��
��


�*

�
*�

�


��
��
	
�

 
	�
��
�	
��

��
��

-
�
�

/
4
�

,
	�
	�
��
�
	
��

 
���

�
�$

-
��
	
$

�
�

�
��
��

��



�
��
��

,
	�
	
��
�

�


*�
��
�
�

�*

�
��
��
	�
��

�
	�
�	
 

6
�	
	

��
��

�

�
	�
� 
7�

��
�1

-
�
�

�
��
�
��


��
��
��
�

�
	
��
��
���


��
��
��
�
�
	

�
�

�
��
��

��



�
��
��

4
��
�	

�
 
��
	
	�
�

�*

��
��
	�
�
%
��
��

*�
�

��
	

*�
��
�	
�

��
�5

-
�
�

,
	�
	�
��

�
�

�
��
�
��


�
��
�	
�

�
��
��
��
	�
�

�
�

��
�	
�


��
�
�
�
��$

�
��
�
��
�


	�
 
��
=�
�

�
�

�
��
��

��



�
��
��

%
��
��

�
��
��
��$

 
���
�

��
	

��
�
�
�
��$

��

�
���
	

�	
��
��
��
�

��
�
�	

��
�8

�
��

4
	�
�	
 

�
��
��
�	
�

*�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
��
���


��
>
�
�



��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

 
���
>
�
	�
��
	
��

�
��
�
�

�
�

*�
���
 
�
�


	�
��
��
	�

�
*
�
	�
	�
	

 
	�
��
	�

�
4

�
��
��

��



&�
	

�
�

4
	�
��
�
�
�

-
&�

�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�	
��
�
�
	
��
���
�

��

�
	


��
��
	�
	
�	
�

�
�
��
		
�

 
���

�
	�
��
�	

�
��
��
�	
��

�
	*
��
	

��



@
��
��
	�

!
;�
�


	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

!�
�

�
�	
��

�
��
��
�
?
��
��

��

�
��
	�
�

��
��
	
��

�
��
	

*�
�

	
 



�	
�$
��
�
�

�	
��
��
	�

A

�
		

�
��
�

1�
�

�
�

@
��

'

�
��

2
	 

�
	�
$�
��
�

�	
��
��
	

*�	
	�

�
��
��
���
�	

 
���

�
��
� 
��
�

�	
��
��
	


��
*
��
��
��
��


�*

��
��
�	



!�
!

�
@
�
�

�
��
��
�
?
��
��

��

�
��
	�
�

�	
	
*��
�

�*

�
	�
��
��
	


��
��	
��
��


�*

*�
��

�
�

-
�

�
�

&�


'

&�
�

�
��
��
�	

�
	�
��
�	
�
	
�
*
�	
	�

�
*
�
��
�
��

�
��
�	
��
��


�	
��
��
	�

!�
�

-
�
�

+
��
�

�
��
�	

�
�	
��
�
	
�

�
�

�
��
��'

�
��

4
	�
��
�	
�
	
�
�
�
��
��
�
*
��

��
	

��
	�
��
	
�
�
*
*
��
�

 
��
�	
�

!�
�

�
�"
�
�

�
	
�	
��
�

�*

�


	 

�
�
��
��
�
*
��

�
��
	

�*

�
	�
$�
��
��
	


�
��
	�
��
�
 
���

�
�
��
�	
��
���


�*

�
��
��
��
�	
�

��
�=
�
�

�
�


��
�
�*
	�

�
�	
��
���
�
�
�
��
:	
��

��

�
��
		
�
	
�>

��
��



��
��
	�
�

�
�$

�
��
�

�
��
��
	

�
%
�
�

�
�

�
��
��'
,
	�

2
	 

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�	

�	
�
�
$

��

,
	�
	�
�	
�

 
���


	 



��
��
�
	�
	
��

�
��
�
	
��
�

�
��
��

!;
��

��
$�
%�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

��
�

�
@
�
�

�
��
��
�
?
��
��

��

�
	�
��
	

�

	
 

 
��
�	

�
�

�
	�
$�
��
�


�	
��
�
�


��
	

�
��	
�
	�
�	
�

��
	�

�
�

�
��
'�
�

�
��	

�
�B
��
��
���
>

�
��

�
�

��
�
	
��

�
�

�
��	

�
	�
	�
��
�
	
�
*
��



��
��
��
���


�$

�
��
�

�
��

�
�

��
!

-
�
�

�
��
	�
�

��
��
��
	
	*
���

�
*
4
	�
��
��
�
�

��
�	

�
��
�
*	
�

�



�
��
�	
�

�
��
��

�
*
�
�	

�
��
�
$

�
�

�
��
�
	�



!;
��

�
��
	
���
�
�
��
�
*	
�

��
�
��
��

*�
�

��
�=
�
�

�
�

�
 
��
�

��
��
��
	

�*



�	
*�
�	

��

*�
��
�	

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�

-
�
�

�
�	
��
��
���
�

*�
�

�	
��
��
	�
	
�
/
4
�

�
�
/
	�
��
�	
�

�
�

�
��
��

��



�
��
��

@
��
��
��
�
��	
�

��
	
��*
�	
�

�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�	
��
��
��

Page 100



�
�
��
��

�
��
�

#
"
��

�
�
��

�
�

&�
'
��
��
��
�(
��
��

�
�
��
��
�

��
�

�
�"
�
�

�
��
��
�
?
��
��

 
���

�
��
	�
��
	
�
�
*
�
�	

�
��
�
	�
�

��
�	



*�
�

�

�
��
�	

�
��
�	

�
	�
��
�	

�

�
,
�

�

��
	

 
���

�
%
�



��
�	
�
	�

�
�

�
��
'�
�

4
	�
�	
 

�
*
�
��
�	

�
	�
��
�	

�

�
,
�

6
�
��
��

��
7

��

�
	

�
��
��
��
	�



*�
��

�
��
��


C�
�

 
���

�
��
	
���
�
*
��

:�
�
�
�
��
=	
��
�

��
!

�
�"
�
�

�
��
��
�
?
��
��

 
���

�
	�
�	
 

�
*
�
��
=$

 
��
�	

�
��
�	
��
��



��
�	
�
	�
�

�
�

#

�
%

�
��
A&
��
$


��

�
	�
��
�	

�
��
��
��
��

��

�
	�
��
	

��
��
�

6�
,
�
7

�
�

��
�	
��

�
��
��
���
$


�*

�
��
�
	�
�

��
�	

��

�
��
��
	

�
	�
��
�	

 
���

�
,
�

#

�
%
�



�	
���
	�
	�

�
$

?
��
��

��
�

-
�
�

)�
��
	�
	
�
�
��
��
�
	�

�
*
�
��
��
	�
��

4
	�
�	
 

�
*
�
�	

/
4
�



�	
��
��
	

��
�
	�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
	$

�
�

�
��
	�
��
�

 
��
�	



��
�	
��
��
�

�
�

�
��
��

��



�
��
��

,
	�
	
��
�

�


*�
��
�
�

�*

�
��
��
	�
��

�
	�
�	
 
�

��
�

�
�"
�
�

�
�

#

�
%

�
��
A�
	�



��

�
��
��
��
	

�*


	 

�
��
�

��
=
�

�
�

�	
��
��
	

��
�
�*
	�
�	
�

��

?
��
��



6�
,
�
7

�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
*
�
��
�

��
�	

�
	�
*�
��
�
�	

�
�

�
��
	�
��
�


�	
��
	 

��

�
��
��
��
	

*�
��
���
�	
�

��
��
��
��
	

6�
%
�
7

��
1

+
�,

4
�
��
3

�$

�
��

�
��

)�
��
��
	

�	
��
��
	

��
��
��
��


 
���
�

	
.�
��
�
�

��
��
	�

��
5

+
�,

4
�

�$

�
��

�
��

)�
��
��
	

�	
��
��
	

��
��
��
��


��
8

+
�,

@
�
��
�

�
	�
	�
��
�
	
�
�
*
2
��
��
��
�	

�
$�
�	
�

#



��
��
�
�

�
*
+
�,

�
4
�

�	
��

��

�
�	

%
�**
�
	�

�
$�
�	
�
�

4
�
�
�
4
�
�


)�
*�
��

+
	�



��
)�
��
��
	

��
��
��
	�

	
.�
	�
�	
�
	

�
�

��
��
�
�

�*

�
*�

�
	�
 
		


3�
�


�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�

	*
*	
��
��
	�
$

�
�
���
�

��
	

��
�
��
��

��
9

�
��

?
��
��
	

�
�

�	
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
	

*�
�

�	
�	
��
�	
��
�


��
�
	
��

�
3�
4
�

�$

�
��

�
�

2
	 

�
��
��
�

�
	�
�	
�

�	
��
�
	�

*�
�

�	
��
��
	

��
��
��
��


��
<

-
�
�

)
��
��
��
	

�
��
	

��
�=
�
�

�$
��
	�

*�
�

��
�

#

��
��
�	
��

�
�

�$

�
��

�
�

)�
��
��
	�

�
��
��
�
	�

�
	�
��
�	

)�
'
�
��
�*
�+
�,
��
��
��
"
�

1�
�

�
�	
��

�
��
��
��
	

��
��
���
�$

�
*
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�.
	�

�
��
��

�
��
��
��



�
�

�	
��
$

��
��
��
��
�

�	
�$
��
�
�

��
��	
��
��
�

�

�
%
�

�
�

�
��
A�
	�



��
%
��
�
	�
�

��
�	

�
��
��
�	
�

�
�

��
	�
	
�	
�

��

�
%
�

�
��
�
	�

*�
�


	
��
��
	�
	
�
�
�

&
�
�

*�
�

*�
��
��

�
	�
��
��
�

1�
!

-
�
�

4
	�
��
��
�
�

��
�	

�
��
��
��
���


�
�
�$
��
�

�
�

	�
��$

!
;�
�


*�
�

�$
�

%
	�
�

 
��
�	

�
��
�
*
��

�
���
��
��$

�
��
	�

�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
 
��
�	



��
�
��
��
���
�

4
	�
�	
 

%
��
�

��
�	

�
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
�

��
�
�
��
		

�
��
��
��
��



��

	
��
��
��
	

��
�	
�
��
�
*
��

�
��
�
��

�
�

�
	�
��
�	



��
��
��
	�
	
��










+
��

+
�,

��
��

�
��
��
	�

�
��
	
���
�
*
��



	.
��
�

��
��
���
�

�
�

��
��
��
��
�

��
=
�

Page 101



�
�
��
��

�
��
�

#
"
��

�
�
��

�
�

-�
�

�
��
�.
�
��

�
��

��

��

��
��
�$�
��
��
��
��
�

5�
�

�
��

�
��
�	

�
	�
��
���


#

�
	�
$�
��
�

�	
�*
��
�
�
�	

D
��
��
	�
�$

4
	�
��
�
�
	�
*�
��
�
�	

�
��
��
��
�	
�$

5�
!

-
�
�

�
��
��
��
�	

�
��
	
��
�

�

�
��
�
	�
��
��

 
���

�
�$

-
��
	
$
�
�

�
��
��

��



�
��
��

�


��
�	
�

�*

�
��
�	
�
	
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
	

$	
��

 
��
��

 
���


		
�


��
��
��
�
*
��
�

�
��
**�

5�
�

-
�
�

�
��
=

�
��
��
�
	�

�

�
��
�
	�
��
��

 
���

�
�$

-
��
	
$

�
�

�
��
��

��



�
��
��

)�
��
��
	�

�
��
��
�
	�

�
	�
��
�	

��
�
�"
��

8�
�

+
�,

)

��
��
�
�
*
�
�
4
�!
>
�
	�
�	
 

��
��
�
�
��
��
$

 
�	
�	

�
��
��
	�



��


�	

�
��
	

*�
�

 
��
�	

�
��
�	
��
��


�
�

��
��
��
��

4
�

@
��
'�
�

��
�
��
�	
�

�
��
��
�	
�

�
�	
�

�
�
4
�!

8�
!

+
�,

4
	�
�	
 

�
*
*
�$
���
��
�

�
�

	
*
��
�	
�
	
�
�
��
�	
��
�	
�


 
���

�
��
		
�
 
��
�	
�

	
�
���
�
	
��
�
�
��
�	
��
��


�	
��

4
�

�$

�
��

�
�

�
�
��
��
	
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�

�	
��
�	
�

*�$
���
��
�

�
��
�	
�
�

8�
�

+
�,

�
��
		
�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
�
���
��
�

A

�	
�	
��
�

	
 



��
��
	�
��
	�

�
�

�
	�
*�
��
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��

��

�
	�
��
�	

2
)


�<
1

4
�
�
4
�

�$

�
��

�
�

2
	 

�
��
�	
��
	�

*�
�

�
�
���
��
�

�
�

�	
��
��
�
�

��
�	
�

�

��
��
�


�	
�*
��
�
�
�	

�
��
��
��
��



8�
�

+
�,

0
�
��
	

��
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
	

 
���

/
�
0

�
��
��
�
	

�



�
��
�	

�
�

4
	�
$�
��
�

�
��
�	
��
��


4
�
�4
�

�
��
�
�

/
�
0

�
�	
��
	
���


��
�
	
�

�	
*�
�	

@
��
��
	�

�
�


8�
1

+
�,

#



�
�	
��

)
��
��
��
	

	
 

/
��
�	
��
��

�
��
��
��

�
��
�	

�
��
�	
��
��



�
	�
��
�	

��

�
	�
��
�	

2
/
�

�
	�
��
�	

 
���
��
� 


*�
��



�
��
��

�
�

�
%
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
��
�	

�
	�
��
�	

��

�
	�
��
	
��

 
��

�
	
	�
��
	

��
��
$�
��

�
�

��
�
���
�


��
�
��
��

 
��
�	
�
�
,
�

�
��	
��
$

��
��
��
	

��
��

�
	�
��
�	
�
2
��
	E

-
�
��$
�



��
	

�	
��
�
�

�

��
��

�
��
:	
��
�

8�
5

�
��

�
�
��
��

�

 
��
=�
��
��

�
	�
��
��
	

��
�
��
���
�

�
	�
 
		



��
��
	
��

�
4

�$

,
	�

�
�

4
	�
��
�
�
�

�
�
-

�


*�
��
�
�

/
�*

 
��
=

�*
*	
��
�
�

�
��
	

��
�

�
	

�
��
�
	�



�
��
=

�	
�

�$

�
	

�
��
�
	�

 
���

�
��
	
���
�
�
�

��
��
	

 
���



��
�	
��



�
��
	
���
�
�
�

��
� 

*�
��

�

��
��
	

�
��
	�
�	
�
�

��
�	



�
��
�
	�
��
��

 
��
=

Page 102


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	5 Local council tax support scheme (LCTS)
	6 Rebranding Cheltenham Art Gallery and Museum
	7 Request for consent for the council to enter into a deed dedicating Weavers Field and The Burrows Playing Field as Queen Elizabeth II Fields with the organisation Fields in Trust
	8 Triennial review of the Sexual Entertainment Venue Policy
	2013_09_17_CAB_Triennial_Review_Sexual_Entertainment_App1
	2013_09_17_CAB_Triennial_Review_Sexual_Entertainment_App2
	2013_09_17_CAB_Triennial_Review_Sexual_Entertainment_App4

	9 Response to Recommendations of the Scrutiny Task Group on the Sex trade in Cheltenham
	12 Exempt Minutes
	13 St Paul's Phase Two
	Section 10: BRIEFING NOTES
	_CAB_BR_note_Joint_Waste_Committee_App1
	_CAB_BR_note_Joint_Waste_Committee_App2


